
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting Police and Crime Committee 

Date Wednesday 4 September 2019 

Time 10.00 am 

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 
Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at  
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee  
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Unmesh Desai AM (Chair) 
Steve O'Connell AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Tony Arbour AM 
Sian Berry AM 
Andrew Dismore AM 

Len Duvall AM 
Florence Eshalomi AM 
Susan Hall AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Peter Whittle AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chairman of the Committee to deal with the 

business listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Tuesday 27 August 2019 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559; Email: 
teresa.young@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 
For media enquiries please contact Aoife Nolan, External Communications Officer on  
020 7983 4067.  Email: aoife.nolan@london.gov.uk.  If you have any questions about individual items 
please contact the author whose details are at the end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:aoife.nolan@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
Police and Crime Committee 
Wednesday 4 September 2019 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair. 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests; 

 

(b) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and 

 

(c) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 42) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Police 

and Crime Committee held on 3 July 2019 to be signed by the Chair as a correct 

record. 
 

 The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 42 is attached for Members and officers 

only but is available from the following area of the GLA’s website: www.london.gov.uk/mayor-

assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee


 

4 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 43 - 60) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the completed, closed and ongoing actions 

arising from previous meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report. 
 
 

5 Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and 
Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service (Pages 61 - 74) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Tanya Lightfoot-Taylor, tanya.lightfoot-taylor@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 2598 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the monthly report from the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, 

attached at Appendix 1 to the report, as background to the question and 

answer session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the 

Metropolitan Police Service; and    

 

(b) Note the answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the 

Metropolitan Police Service to the questions asked by Members. 
 
 

6 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Pages 75 - 78) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Janette Roker, janette.roker@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6562 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the progress on its work programme as set out in the report; 

 

(b) Note the summary of the site visit to the South West Borough Command Unit 

on 7 August 2019, as set out in paragraphs 4.4 to 4.6 of the report. 

 

(c) Delegate authority to the Chair, in consultation with the party Group Lead 

Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree an Annual Report 

summarising the work of the Committee over the past year.  
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:tanya.lightfoot-taylor@london.gov.uk
mailto:janette.roker@london.gov.uk


 

5 
 

7 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for 19 September 2019 at 10am in the 

Chamber, City Hall. 
 
 

8 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 September 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM European Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: Police and Crime Committee 
Date: Wednesday 3 July 2019 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 

Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee 

  

 
Present: 
 
Unmesh Desai AM (Chair) 
Steve O'Connell AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Tony Arbour AM 
Sian Berry AM 
Florence Eshalomi AM 
Susan Hall AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Peter Whittle AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1) 

 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Andrew Dismore AM and Len Duvall AM. 

 

1.2 During the question and answer session with the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) (Agenda Item 7), the Chair welcomed 

visitors from Richmond Magistrates Court who observed the meeting from the public gallery. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee


Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 

 

 
 

 
 
3   Standing Delegation (Item 3) 

 

3.1 Resolved: 

 

That the standing delegation set out below, which was agreed by the London 

Assembly (Plenary) meeting on 6 June 2019, to Chairs of ordinary committees, sub-

committees and working groups to agree, in consultation with relevant party Lead 

Group Members and Deputy Chairs, be noted: 

a) The detailed terms of reference for any investigation to be undertaken by the 

relevant committee, sub-committee or working group within its work 

programme as agreed by the GLA Oversight Committee, and any related 

project plans and arrangements for related site visits or informal meetings; 

and 

b) The topic and scope for any additional projects to be added to its work 

programme, where it is not practicable to secure prior approval from the 

GLA Oversight Committee and subject also to subsequent ratification by the 

GLA Oversight Committee. 

 
 
4   Minutes (Item 4) 

 

4.1 Resolved: 

 

That the minutes of the Police and Crime Committee meetings held on 23 May 2019 

and 4 June 2019 be signed by the Chair as correct records. 

 
 
5   Summary List of Actions (Item 5) 

 

5.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

5.2 Resolved: 
 

That the completed, ongoing and closed actions arising from the previous meetings 

of the Committee, as listed in the report, be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 

 

 
 

6   Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Item 6) 

 

6.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

6.2 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the recent action taken by the Chair under delegated authority, 

following consultation with the party Group Lead Members and 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, as set out below, be noted: 

 

(i) To agree the scope and terms of reference for the Committee’s scrutiny 

investigation of sexual offences and rape; and 

 

(ii) To agree the arrangements for the Committee’s site visit to the Central 

South Basic Command Unit. 
 

(b) That the summary of the Committee’s site visit to Brixton Police Station on 

19 June 2019, as set out in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.4 of the report, be noted. 

 
 
7   Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and 

Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service (Item 7) 

 

7.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as background to 

the questions and answer session with MOPAC and the MPS. 

 

7.2 The Chairman welcomed the following guests to the meeting: 

 Sophie Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime; and 

 Mark Simmons, Assistant Commissioner, MPS. 

 

7.3 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

7.4 During the course of the discussion, the Assistant Commissioner undertook to provide: 

 Confirmation about the number of posts that were vacant, and the number of posts 

where postholders were on maternity leave or long-term sick leave and which were not 

being covered in respect of the additional 300 posts which had been created to deal with 

rape and sexual violence in Basic Command Units (BCUs), broken down by BCU; 

 Confirmation of how many of the current digital forensic kiosks were operational;  

 Confirmation about the timescales for the next generation of digital forensic kiosks to be 

fully operational in the BCUs; 

 Confirmation as to whether the next generation of kiosks to download evidence from 

electronic devices would be compatible with the MPS other systems (as highlighted in 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 

 

 
 

the report of Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary, Fire & Rescue Services in February 

2019) regarding child protection;  

 Confirmation about the MPS’s separate investment in digital capability; 

 Confirmation as to whether there were any plans to use facial recognition technology at 

Notting Hill Carnival; 

 Confirmation as to whether the MPS planned to collaborate with private companies to 

use their technology for facial recognition; 

 Confirmation as to whether there had been any discussions with companies about the 

future use of facial recognition technology in body worn cameras; 

 Details of the MPS’s visit to Merseyside Police to learn about their work on trauma-

informed policing; and 

 Confirmation of how many boroughs and schools were involved with Operation 
Encompass and how many incidents were reported as a result. 

 

7.5 During the course of the discussion, the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to: 

 Provide the latest figure for the number of victims of rape and serious sexual assault who 

were referred to Havens during the last year; 

 Provide copies of the reports MOPAC had commissioned on the homicide and serious 

case review and strategic needs assessment to explore the underlying causes of violence 

once they had been published; 

 Provide a table of progress against the Committee’s recommendations in its report, A 

Long Way from Home; 

 Provide details of the new women’s centre, funded by the Co-Commissioning Fund, 

which had opened in Islington; 

 Provide information about the pilot project to help divert women from the criminal 

justice system, which was due to start in August 2019; and 

 Provide a briefing on the parts of the criminal justice system, which it was anticipated 
would be devolved to the Mayor. 

 

7.6 At the end of the discussion the Chair thanked the guests for their attendance and helpful 

contributions. 

 

7.7 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the monthly report from the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, 

attached at Appendix 1 of the report, be noted. 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 

 

 
 

(b) That the report and answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and 

Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service to the questions asked by 

Members be noted. 

 
 
8   Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Item 8) 

 

8.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

8.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the progress on work programme, as set out in the report, be noted. 

 

(b) That the topics for the Committee’s thematic meetings in July, September and 

first thematic meeting in October 2019, which were approved by the 

GLA Oversight Committee at its meeting on 1 July 2019, be noted. 

 
 
9   Date of Next Meeting (Item 9) 

 

9.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, 17 July 2019 at 10am in the 

Chamber, City Hall. 

 
 
10   Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 10) 

 

10.1 There was no other business the Chair considered urgent. 

 
 
11   Close of Meeting  

 

11.1 The meeting ended at 11.50am. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Chair  Date 
 
Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

  

London Assembly Police and Crime Committee – Wednesday, 3 July 2019 
 

Transcript of Item 7 – Question and Answer Session with the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service  

 

 
Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Before we move to our next item, the substantial item on today’s agenda, the 

question and answer (Q&A) session, Deputy Mayor, I do wish to express the concerns of this Committee in 

respect of the way the announcement of the departure of the Chief Executive of the Mayor’s Office for 

Policing and Crime (MOPAC) Rebecca Lawrence has been made.  We were not told about this formally.  We 

wish her well and congratulations to her, but we are concerned.  We will be writing to you formally, but on 

behalf of my colleagues I just wanted to put on record that it would be better to be told about these things 

formally.  Thank you. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Apologies for that. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Let us move on to the Q&A session.  If I can kick off, the first set of questions is 

on sexual offences and rape and they are to you, Deputy Mayor.  One of the Mayor’s commitments is to 

scrutinise the workload of officers involved in violence against women and girls (VAWG) cases.  How is that 

commitment being fulfilled in terms of those officers working in Basic Command Unit (BCU) safeguarding 

teams?  Can you give us an example of action you have taken as a result of your scrutiny of these workloads? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  In terms of oversight and scrutiny of the work of 

the MPS (MPS) on VAWG, I hold regular meetings with Mark Simmons [Assistant Commissioner, MPS].  We 

also hold regular oversight board meetings on a quarterly basis.  You will have seen the performance report.  

There is a VAWG section in the performance report and we have regular discussions on sanction detection 

rates, for example, and discussions with the Commissioner [of Police of the Metropolis] on her concerns that 

she voiced very publicly last week around overall sanction detection rates and in particular sanction detection 

rates around domestic abuse.  Part of that oversight also looks not just at overall London figures but at 

consistency across BCUs, looks at where there are inconsistencies or good performance or  

not-so-good performance across BCUs. 

 

In terms of sexual offences and safeguarding, I have also visited two BCUs to discuss with them the changes 

around the safeguarding and to discuss with them workload issues, digital disclosure and how the changes are 

landing.  That is part of ensuring that the strategic oversight is married up with that understanding of what is 

happening on the front line as well.  I am making sure that I am there, and I have discussed and engaged with 

frontline officers, who are experiencing and are having to deliver particularly the changes to the BCUs. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  OK.  I may come back to you later but, Assistant Commissioner Simmons, can I 

ask you?  Since the introduction of BCUs, officers dealing with rape and sexual offences have higher workloads 

and long periods of overtime.  Is this something that is consistent across all the BCUs and, if so, how is it being 

monitored and addressed? 

 

You may also know that we went to see the BCU at Brixton a couple of weeks ago and so we have had  

first-hand experience of what officers are going through on the front line. 

Page 11



 

 
 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)):  Sure.  Firstly, it is not 

the case that officers investigating rape have higher workloads in terms of rape investigations than they did 

beforehand.  The average number of investigations per officer at the moment is something like 8.5 across the 

whole of London.  That sounds like a silly number when talking about an offence like rape, I understand, but 

there is a variation across different BCUs between, broadly, about 12 and about six as an average.  The 

position in terms of the number of rape investigations per officer is favourable compared to what it was before 

the [establishment of the] BCUs. 

 

It is also the case that with the pressures we were under in terms of the central setup before the BCU setup, a 

number of those rape investigations - not out of choice from our point of view - were led by Police Constables 

(PCs) under the supervision of Detectives rather than by Detectives themselves.  The workload is broadly in a 

range that fits with what we have planned, and we are moving to the point where fully trained and qualified 

Detectives are leading all those investigations.  That is the position we are in at the moment. 

 

As you know I am sure, the position in terms of staffing the increase in demand for the central Sapphire part of 

Specialist Crime and Operations (SCO) 17, as it was known, had to be constantly bolstered by attachments 

from boroughs, as they were then, in order to manage the workload at that time.  Of course, many of those 

attachments, as I commented on now, were PCs, as opposed to the position we have now where the 

investigators for rape and the other serious crimes in safeguarding are Detectives. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Can I pick up from what you were just saying?  You just talked about rape.  The 

question from the Chair was about rape and all other sexual offences and the workload has gone up. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Sexual offences as a whole were not dealt with by SCO17 

before and so drawing a direct comparison is difficult to do.  Of course, with the nature of sexual offences, 

there is a wide variation in terms of the amount of investigative work that goes into some sexual offences 

compared to others.  For example, an indecent exposure has a very different level of investigation and 

expertise and so on required than a rape, to state the obvious.  Similarly, the offences that we see on buses 

and so on of indecent touching and so on are also in that bracket.  The workload in terms of rape offences is 

the easiest one to make a direct comparison about because that was what the Sapphire officers investigated, 

rape and serious sexual offences by that definition, as opposed to all sexual offences, recognising that, as I say, 

the nature of the investigations does vary from the offences that are not classified in formal terms as serious 

sexual offences. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  From the Detectives we spoke to, it was quite clear that their workload had 

gone up because they were having to go and deal with domestic violence (DV) cases coming in that were 

urgent.  They were having to put aside some of their work on these serious rape cases to go and deal with DV 

and the volume of work coming through.  Their workload had gone up hugely and they were having to work 

considerable overtime as well.  You are painting a rosier picture than what we found on the ground. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am not attempting, certainly, to paint a rosy picture.  

There is a huge amount of pressure in this area of work.  Safeguarding is highly pressurised, we know, for all 

the reasons that are well rehearsed here and the increase we have had in demand over recent years, again.  

That is victims coming forward and telling us about their experiences.  We know we have had that huge 

pressure in terms of demand that does cut across from rape and serious sexual offences into domestic abuse as 

well.  We know there is a significant overlap between people who suffer both sexual violence and DV.  A 

Page 12



 

 
 

significant proportion of the rapes that are reported to us - and one of the benefits of bringing investigations 

together - also have other elements of DV as well as issues of child protection where that has occurred in the 

family or within a relationship. 

 

It is true, of course, that part of the drive for bringing the dedicated rape investigators and child abuse 

investigators into the local environment where they are working alongside domestic abuse investigators, given 

the increase in demand and pressure and the importance of this work, is to give us the flexibility to respond to 

what we are presented with on a daily, weekly or monthly basis in the best way we can.  Overall, there are more 

people - I was going to say more resource, but that is officers - working in in that arena of safeguarding, some 

300 more, than there were under the previous system with the borough domestic abuse units and Community 

Safety Units (CSUs) and the central rape and child abuse investigators. 

 

Do I paint a rosy picture?  No, I would not seek to paint a rosy picture about the investigation of serious sexual 

offences, sexual violence and the other safeguarding issues.  It is a great challenge for us. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Are the additional 300 posts you say have been created all filled or is that just 

the posts but actually you are carrying a lot of vacancies? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  They are not all filled because, in the scale of the MPS, 

there is movement in and out of posts across the whole of London.  It makes it very difficult to say exactly how 

many at any point in time, but we do prioritise the filling of safeguarding posts; albeit that there are pressures 

then against the street violence work as well, which requires a lot of the same skills and so on.  We do prioritise 

the safeguarding posts as best we can. 

 

You will be well aware, again, of some of the pressures around our Detective recruitment position and of 

course Detective skills are what we need for the serious offences in safeguarding as well as the investigation of 

the serious violence incidents.  There is pressure around that, although we have a good trajectory in terms of 

the coming months.  Yes, there is pressure in that arena. 

 

The vacancies we keep to as small a number as possible, but there is a reality about the numbers on the BCUs 

as we move towards the 31,000 [police officers] and how that enables us then to manage the pipeline through 

into Detectives and into some of the more serious offending investigations. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I wonder whether we could have in writing from you after this what the current 

vacancies are and also to understand the number of officers in that unit who are on maternity leave and  

long-term sick so that we can get a real picture of the numbers you have working in this field. 

 

Could I just pick up before I move into what I wanted to ask about from the Deputy Mayor?  You said you had 

visited a couple of BCUs.  Could you tell us which ones you visited and what you found talking to officers 

working in safeguarding? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I visited Central North most recently in February 

[2019] and then also I visited the East area a while back when it was a pathfinder in terms of safeguarding. 

 

I also heard issues being raised about workload pressure and issues around disclosure and some of the 

difficulties around downloading the amount of digital evidence that there is to be downloaded.  However, I did 

genuinely also see, particularly when I visited Central North, a real grip in terms of the safeguarding 

Page 13



 

 
 

procedures, the data that was available, the understanding of the supervisors and those managing the teams, 

an understanding of caseload and workload, how many cases officers are carrying and sometimes the 

inconsistency in terms of officers carrying different levels of caseload.  There was a real grip and understanding 

of that. 

 

I do not at all take away from the fact that workload and pressure is really severe in safeguarding but, as 

Mark Simmons has already said, extra officers have gone in.  Some of this is about the increase in reporting, 

good that that is, but it does mean there is an increase in complexity and an increase in workload and pressure.  

There is also the fact that we have had massive constraints on police officer numbers and Detective numbers 

and that does have an effect. 

 

The premise of your question that this is a result of the BCU changes I would not agree with.  It is a result of an 

increase in demand and a decrease in officer numbers and a real pressure on Detective numbers.  This was 

something that Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary [Fire & Rescue Services] (HMICF&RS) said in 2016 

in the first child protection report.  Lack of Detectives is a real issue.  The volume of Detectives is a national 

problem as well as a London problem.  It is a real and problematic issue that the MPS is trying to address at the 

moment. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  You have touched on digital.  In MOPAC’s latest annual report, you report on 

significant investment being made in digital forensic kiosks to enable recovery of data from mobile devices.  

Can you update us on what investment has gone into new technology to help those safeguarding teams on the 

front line be able to retrieve that digital forensic evidence to progress cases? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  There has been an investment in 86 standalone 

kiosks for BCUs in London, but that does not mean that the problem is not still there.  There is still an issue 

around backlog in disclosure and digital evidence and there has also been an investment in training 

3,000 officers in the use of those kiosks and how to download digital evidence.  There has been an absolute 

understanding of the problem and there is a rollout of the kiosks, but we are still not there in terms of the 

volume of digital evidence.  As I said, it is not just about London.  It is about the number of devices individuals 

have.  If I think about my household -- 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I understand.  You said 86 kiosks.  Are they all operational? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I am not entirely sure whether they are all 

operational yet, but they will be being rolled out at the moment. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Perhaps you can come back to us.  That is a big issue -- 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, it is. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  -- and when we visited Brixton to talk to the officers there, we heard that there 

are not enough officers trained in using the digital forensics machine at the station.  In fact, just one poor 

Detective who was able to download there and then mobile devices.  He was being taken away from doing the 

work on the cases he had to deal with because he was the only person who could download immediately.  They 

mentioned that there was going to be a pilot there.  It sounds to me like it is far further behind in terms of 

rolling out the technology and training. 

 

Page 14



 

 
 

I am wondering when we can have this increased capacity across the BCUs to make sure we are not relying on 

one poor officer to deal with this when it is increasingly important that we get digital evidence. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  If I can help on the pilot, the pilot refers to the next 

generation of kiosks that we start to test this month with a view to increasing both what the kiosks can do and 

the number of them.  The pilot does not refer to the 86 kiosks that are in place.  It is for the next iteration, 

recognising, as you have said, that the demand grows and the backlog is still there, albeit reduced over the last 

12 months.  It is going to be a continuing demand and a continuing pressure. 

 

Of course, we are pushing ahead with this training.  Members will be aware that there is a huge challenge 

around the overall pressure on training.  We are trying to train all the officers in safeguarding on all the issues 

to do with safeguarding as well as the technical issues to do with digital downloads.  We have a huge 

programme around all that.  We are trying to absolutely recognise the challenge.  I hear that all the time of 

course when I go around the boroughs and BCUs.  We are pushing ahead as much as we can on getting people 

through that training and increasing both what the kiosks can do and the number of them available to officers. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  When do you expect the next generation, the new technology you are talking 

about, to be fully operational across all the BCUs with enough officers trained to use them?  What is your 

timescale? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I cannot off the top of my head, I am afraid, give you a 

timescale around the next generation.  I know the test starts this month and I guess we will have to see the 

results of the test.  With apologies, I will have to come back to you outside with the timeline you have asked 

for there. 

 

We continue with the training.  That is a constant programme.  The demand for that is huge, as you say.  That 

is a significant programme over time.  Again, I can give you more specifics on the timeline outside. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Will this next generation of technology and training address the issue flagged in 

the HMICF&RS report on child protection in March?  It said that there is incompatibility of the MPS’s 

information technology (IT) systems and the force cannot use all the functions and capabilities of things like 

the child abuse image database and so on.  Will this rollout address those concerns that were picked up around 

digital evidence in that? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I would need to check the detail of it.  It does not 

specifically address that.  There are issues that we are addressing through our IT programme around the 

systems being able to talk to each other and so on. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  That is a separate investment in digital capability, then, is it? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  There are various investments we are making in our 

digital capability around the transfer of evidence, for example, as well as around the downloading of the 

evidence in the first place.  For more detail on exactly what all that does, I would need to come back to you 

outside on that. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Thank you.  You have the immediate download of data from devices to be able 

to, I guess, look at what is there, to help with charging decisions and so on, but we also heard that there is a 

Page 15



 

 
 

six- to nine-month backlog for digital evidence sent off to your forensic labs.  It goes off to the labs 

particularly when full downloads of data are needed or if you need to retrieve deleted messages and so on to 

get that extracted and you need your specialists to do that. 

 

Do you have enough capacity there?  Is there a way that you are looking to increase the investment to make 

sure you can speed that turnaround up?  We heard that in Lambeth and Southward there are 180 live rape 

cases and 140 are stuck in the system, the bulk of which because they are waiting for information from the 

forensic labs. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I do not have those specific figures that you have been 

quoted from Lambeth. 

 

In terms of rape investigations, serious sexual offence investigations and all the other investigations in which 

digital evidence is important, are we trying to address the issues around the backlog that exists?  Yes, we are.  

In terms of investment, as Members will be aware, we are investing on a whole range of things that are 

designed to help move us forward in terms of the changing context around crime and the demands we face at 

the moment.  Yes, we have a programme around the digital work where we prioritise in terms of the 

investigative activity, but the scale of the challenge around digital evidence both in rape investigations and in 

other cases is such that this is -- a constant challenge for us at the moment is how we keep pace with or catch 

up with the developments there have been in the available evidence, the expectations of what we do with that, 

the requirement for us to look at that and how we manage the skills and the equipment across the MPS.  That 

is a continuing pressure for the time being, albeit we are making progress on some aspects of it.  Some of the 

waiting times, as I say, have reduced over the last 12 months, but I am not going to pretend that this is not a 

major challenge for us. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Are you specifically looking to increase the capacity at the MPS’s forensics lab 

for data extraction? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I do not know whether this answers your question 

directly and forgive me if I cannot, but we have a programme within the lab to make sure we are effectively 

prioritising what work goes in there.  We are trying to make sure we get as quick a turnaround as possible on 

those cases we prioritise.  Clearly, we want to get in a position where we have the greatest capacity possible, 

hence the investment in kiosks for the tier-one digital evidence-gathering.  Yes, we have a programme within 

forensics to try to address as best as possible the huge demands we are facing currently on both the 

developing technology and our ability to do it in a timely fashion. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Thank you.  Deputy Mayor, are you looking at whether you need to invest more 

in this area to increase the capacity?  It is all right prioritising and I understand that if you get a case that is 

suddenly incredibly high-profile and really important, it will go to the top, but you have people who have been 

raped waiting six to nine months for you to decide whether you have enough evidence to take this to court.  

These people’s lives are almost on hold.  I am wondering whether you are looking at that capacity at the lab. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, absolutely, and it is a discussion I have had 

at the investment advisory meetings that I chair every month with the MPS in terms of investment and looking 

at the capacity of forensics and - I completely agree with you - the fact that this is one part of the problem 

with victims getting justice around forensic digital evidence.  There is much else that needs improving as well.  

It is absolutely a conversation and a discussion that we are having and have had not just about prioritisation 

Page 16



 

 
 

but about extra capacity and what is needed to speed up the forensic capability and capacity for this type of 

digital evidence as well as other forensics. 

 

I would also say that there has been massive pressure on the forensic service of the MPS.  Grenfell [Tower fire] 

still has a huge effect on investigative capacity and that is still ongoing.  I know it feels like it should not be 

still having that effect, but it does and that is on digital capacity as well.  There is massive pressure in this area, 

but it does not take away from the fact that, absolutely, this digital forensic evidence for rape victims is a real 

issue that needs sorting and addressing much more quickly. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  We might expect a growth bid in the budget for the next year to invest in this. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  The budget did have some extra money for 

forensic capacity within it and that is the discussion we have been having around what that should be spent on 

and how that should be prioritised. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Great.  Thank you very much.   

 

Peter Whittle AM:  I have a question for you, Assistant Commissioner, carrying on from Caroline.  We went to 

Brixton, as she said, and they were very impressive people in the team there, but one thing that emerged was 

this terrible problem of having to download from phones.  One of the things that emerged was that keywords 

cannot be used, even, because there is too much information and you cannot just go to keywords. 

 

Somebody mentioned that often the street slang that is used for sexual offences changes a lot.  I just 

wondered, procedurally, how do you get that intelligence?  How do you keep, as it were, abreast of that?  

There are words that are now used that I did not know, and most people would not. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  We do a lot of work through the safeguarding teams in 

each of the BCUs to bring together the learning and the professional development for the staff who work in 

there.  You used the word ‘intelligence’.  A lot of what drives the changes in language and changes in what 

investigators finds that informs our approach comes from the work we do with them.  I am talking this 

afternoon to a large group of safeguarding investigators from across London at a seminar that is bringing them 

together to look at how people like me can support them in the things they are finding difficult from day to 

day.  They are going to be the first people who come across different language, different behaviours and 

different things that inform investigative practice.  It is how we manage the professional development for 

those officers and then feed that informally into training and into some of the technical responses that is, 

clearly, important. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  It is something that is very much at the top of your mind, as it were? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  In this arena, yes.  We could equally talk about some of 

the broader things that happen in gang activity where there are some of the similar issues around digital 

technology and what that tells us.  Yes, the language people use changes and it is our frontline officers who 

are going to be the first to experience that, to learn that and to be able to inform how we develop the practice 

around it. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  I suppose the more canny people will purposely change the language? 

 

Page 17



 

 
 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes, in some circumstances, that is true. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Thank you. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Just to round off this section, Deputy Mayor, can I ask you about victim 

support?  In particular, the Mayor has committed himself to increasing the number of victims of rape and 

serious sexual assault who are referred to Havens.  What are the latest referrals figures? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I do not have the latest referral figures in front of 

me, I am afraid, but in terms of the money that has been invested, there was the £44 million, which was overall 

when we published the VAWG Strategy, and then the Mayor in the budget announced the extra £15 million, 

which was to open up the waiting lists to the Havens and to the Rape Crisis Centres.  That has now been 

operationalised, if you like.  The money is going to them and the waiting lists.  That is not to say that women 

are not waiting for these vital services, but at least the Havens and the Rape Crisis Centres have been able to 

reopen their services to women.  Part of the £15 million has enabled that to happen. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  If you could perhaps send us the figures when you get them? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, I am sure we can let you have figures in 

terms of the numbers that are going to -- 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Yes.  You talked about the £15 million you have spent but -- 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  The figure I have in front of me is that more than 

3,000 women received support through the London Rape Crisis Centres last year.  I am not sure what figures 

you are after in terms of referrals, but those are the women who were receiving support last year.  More than 

3,000 women received support through the London Rape Crisis Centres last year and the extra investment will 

allow more women to receive that support as well as get access to Independent Sexual Violence Advisors, who 

will be pan-London, to support them through the criminal justice system.  We have just been discussing that in 

terms of digital evidence, but from the Victims’ Commissioner’s review of the Victims’ Code of Practice, we 

know that women in particular are having a real issue around advocacy and support services to enable them to 

maintain their journey through the criminal justice system. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  On the subject of the Rape Crisis Centres, you will recall that 

there used to be only one, which was the one in Croydon, now called the South London Rape Crisis Centre.  I 

believe we are going to be speaking to them soon.  The previous Mayor, to his credit, quadruped the number 

of Rape Crisis Centres across London.  We have talked about investment and we have talked about the increase 

in the numbers and the workload.  Is there any opportunity or any inclination to look at extending even further 

the capacities of those Rape Crisis Centres or indeed increasing their numbers? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  A section of that £15 million of additional 

investment has already gone out.  £1 million of additional funding has been fast-tracked to rape support 

services.  I do give credit to the previous administration.  I remember the top slice from the London Crime 

Prevention Fund (LCPF) to allow those Rape Crisis Centres to get up and running.  That was the right decision.  

I too have visited the South London Rape Crisis Centre and they are doing fantastic work for women. 

 

Page 18



 

 
 

In terms of getting this money and the decisions around the best way to spend that £15 million with the VAWG 

sector, they are under huge pressure because of the demand.  This money will help that, but it will not deal 

with all the demand that is in the system at the moment and all those women who need support through Rape 

Crisis Centres.  We are looking at additional investment through the £15 million.  Nearly £7 million has been set 

aside to manage that increase in demand.  That is a longer-term commissioning service that we are hoping to 

have completed by the autumn to enable there to be an increase in service.  It will not result in another Rape 

Crisis Centre, but it should result in an increase in support services. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Thank you. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Before we move on to the next set of questions, can I welcome visitors from the 

Richmond upon Thames Magistrates’ Court? 

 

The next set of questions is on facial recognition technology with Assembly Member Berry. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  I have quite a lot of questions about this.  First of all, to Mark, we scheduled this Q&A in the 

anticipation that the independent evaluation of these 10 trials that have been carried out of live facial 

recognition might be published.  We are expecting it very soon.  It has not been yet.  When will that be 

published and can you give us any rundown now of its broad conclusions? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  In answer to the first question, my understanding is that 

it is due to be released imminently, possibly even later today. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  That would be amazing timing, considering we have had this on the agenda for a while, for 

us not to be able to interrogate its conclusions today. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  It is an independent evaluation and so the timing of that 

is not in our control, but -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  As I understood it, the last time we checked in with the researchers themselves, they had 

sent you the results and were allowing you a right to reply and any sign-off process on them first.  You were in 

control of the timing, as far as I can tell. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  No.  As is standard for this sort of work, we were given 

an opportunity to check for accuracy and so on.  I do not know.  I am not close enough to that particular 

process.  I have not read the report and so, in answer to your second question, I am not in a position to say 

what we are expecting to hear later today.  The process of our factual checking, if you like, or commentary on 

the report has not, in my understanding and my knowledge, been an issue in the timing. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Sorry, I am going off-topic now, but I would be astounded if you published that hours after a 

meeting of the Police and Crime Committee, which is the main scrutiny body for the MPS.  That would feel 

very wrong to me. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I understand the point, but my understanding is that the 

publication of the report is a decision by the authors of the report.  It is an independent report.  It is not a 

decision for us.  That is my understanding of the position. 

 

Page 19



 

 
 

Sian Berry AM:  Alongside that, the MPS is carrying out a technical evaluation report of its own.  I believe 

that is being published alongside the research.  Is that correct?  Is that also later today? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  No.  Again, as far as I am aware, that is not happening 

today, no. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Will you be publishing the technical evaluation report? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  In due course, yes, when it is completed.  There is a 

matter of great public interest, we know, in facial recognition.  We want to be transparent and open about 

what we are doing.  There are no secrets about what we are trying to achieve, what we are trying to do, the 

tests we are doing and so on.  We are very open to the input we have had from our own internal evaluation and 

from other people like the [London Policing] Ethics Panel (LPEP) and their work on it.  We will be looking at 

the report from Essex [University].  There is nothing secret in what we are doing on the facial recognition. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  It would make sense to publish those two documents together if they both are ready. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I was not aware until last night that the Essex report was 

going to be published today, as I say, and my understanding is that neither were colleagues, but I cannot be 

absolutely sure of that.  As I said, we do not have control over the timing of the publication of the Essex 

report.  With the fact that we had short notice around when the actual publication date was going to be, we 

are not in a position to publish our technical evaluation yet, but when we can we will. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  In terms of broad conclusions, you will have seen the report from Essex University.  There 

was a presentation a few weeks ago of some broad conclusions.  Can you tell us what the main lessons you 

have learned from the trials are?  I noticed that some of the outstanding issues are about accuracy, bias, 

making sure people are informed so that there is consent for its use, and the ability to withhold consent from 

being scanned.  Are you able to talk about any of those issues and what you have learned? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  As I say, I was not at the presentation on the Essex 

report.  I know there have been discussions on emerging findings as it has gone along, but I have not read the 

final report and so I am not in a position to comment on that, I am afraid, in detail.  I know there have been 

things we have discovered as we have gone along and things we are working on and we will see how that 

comes out in terms of recommendations and findings and where we go with that.  We have stopped current 

work on facial recognition in terms of active operational use of it so that we can take stock of where we are, 

recognising, as I say, that there is huge public interest in this as well as an operational interest from our point 

of view.  We will see what the recommendations from the Essex report are, as I say, in my understanding, later 

today and we will be very keen to learn the lessons from that. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Another issue that we have raised in this Committee slightly outside of the remit of the trials 

is what the MPS is doing in terms of managing its watchlist that it might use for facial recognition, including 

which data sources it might be using.  We have asked, for example, whether custody images from the recent 

climate change protests were being added to the watchlist.  There is also some concern that photographs 

being taken by forward intelligence officers of demonstrations including children might be scanned and put on 

a watchlist that way, even without people being put in custody. 

 

Page 20



 

 
 

What can you tell us about controls on the watchlist?  Is this being updated even though you are not 

deploying the technology? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am not aware of the concerns that you have just 

described -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  We have raised it with the Commissioner [of Police of the Metropolis] here and we were 

promised some more information. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I do not know the direct answer to that.  I do not know 

what the Commissioner’s answer was, but I would imagine it was that we do not use those sources and we have 

not used those in the watchlist.  That is my understanding but, as I say, I do not have the detail of exactly what 

is in the watchlist. 

 

You can put together a watchlist based on various datasets depending on the operational use you are putting a 

piece of technology to, whether it is automatic number plate recognition (ANPR), to use another example.  We 

do have a watchlist for ANPR, as we do for other systems, as for this.  A watchlist can be created depending on 

the operational purpose we are seeking to achieve, the legal framework for that in terms of proportionality and 

so on and the technical capability of a system to accommodate that size of watchlist. 

 

The principal purpose of the test that we have been doing is around the technical capability of the system and 

so that has been the focus.  It is less, I suppose, about what is on the watchlist and who is on the watchlist - 

and we have we know the mandate is most significant for serious violence and counterterrorism - and whether 

the technology supports the operational objectives that we are trying to achieve as part of the debate around 

proportionality and the ability to operationalise the technology. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  I have three more yes/no questions that you may or may not have the answers to.  Will it be 

used at Notting Hill Carnival this year?  Can you give us reassurance one way or the other? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  There are no plans to use it at Notting Hill Carnival that I 

am aware of this year, but I probably ought to check that for certain because I am not involved in the direct 

planning of Carnival. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Yes, if you can confirm that.  Last year we were told, “Definitely not”, at around this time of 

year. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  That was my understanding. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  There have also been reports of Greater Manchester Police teaming up with Trafford 

Shopping Centre and using facial recognition technology off its CCTV system.  We are concerned about this 

and wondered if there was any collaboration going on between private holders of CCTV and the police in terms 

of using facial recognition in London. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  “We”?  What is this “we”? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am not aware of the Manchester work personally.  

Again, I will qualify this.  I will need to check to make sure because it is a big organisation, but I am not aware 

Page 21



 

 
 

of any work other than the work that has been described in the test here that we have been doing outside of 

that.  I would need to check that to be clear on what -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Yes.  I should clarify that “we” is me in this context.  Thank you.  Sorry, Chair. 

 

More than one of us here is concerned.  Finally, on the yes/no questions, there have been reports from a 

company called Wireless TV, which is seemingly trying to market the use of facial recognition integrated into 

body-worn cameras.  These are different body-worn cameras to the ones the police use.  Nevertheless, they 

are floating that idea.  Have you been in any discussions with that company in the MPS? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am completely unaware of that of the company and 

what you describe.  To my -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Will you be able to find out if there are any discussions taking place? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  To my knowledge, no.  I know there is a lot of work we 

are doing on body-worn video as well.  I am not aware of any work that is linked to that with facial recognition 

directly at all.  From our point of view, we want to act in accordance with the law and in accordance with the 

framework that determines proportionality and so on.  However, as we have talked about in terms of 

technology in another context earlier, we also want to be alive to any opportunities there are to protect the 

safety of Londoners through the use of technology.  There is work we are doing on body-worn video and how 

we can enhance that in terms of public confidence, as well as the other things body-worn video serves, and our 

work on facial recognition has been absolutely focused around whether this is an operational technology that 

will offer us opportunities to protect Londoners in an increased way than we can now.  In terms -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Those were quite specific questions relating to, like you have just said, developing ideas for 

future use if you get the legal go-ahead. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Sure. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  The question was really whether you are exploring those rather than whether you are going 

to use them imminently.  If you could back to us, that would be -- 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  My answer was that I have not heard of that particular 

company you mentioned, and I am not aware of any exploration of that.  I was making the broader point 

because I do not want to mislead that we are keen to exploit any technical opportunities that are 

proportionate, lawful, etc, that help us protect Londoners. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  They had a story in the Evening Standard.  It is hard to imagine that they have not tried to 

get a meeting with the police.  If you could update us, that would be useful. 

 

I did want to ask the Deputy Mayor some questions as well.  You and the Mayor have set up the LPEP and 

asked them to look at this.  They reported at the end of May [2019] on their conclusions and set five ethical 

conditions for how it could be deployed.  I wanted to ask you what you thought of those conclusions and 

those conditions and what else needs to happen before any further use is made of the technology in 

operations here. 

 

Page 22



 

 
 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  The LPEP chaired by Dr Suzanne Shale is a joint 

ethics panel between us and the MPS.  The Mayor set it up with the Commissioner [of Police of the 

Metropolis] and it is important and a good thing that we do have an Ethics Panel. 
 

Yes, one of the good pieces of work that they have undertaken this year is to look at the ethical framework 

and the ethics around the use of live facial recognition.  They have published two reports, an interim report 

and the final report with the five recommendations.  We have been clear that there should be no further use of 

any of the technology until the five recommendations have been addressed and that does also include a review 

of the two reports you have referred to today from Essex [University] as well as the technical evaluation.  I 

expect, and I know that that will happen.  We have had conversations about that.  One of the 

recommendations was to have robust oversight and that is certainly something that we will be making sure 

does happen. 

 

However, as I said, going back to your question about Notting Hill [Canival] and the body-worn video, there 

will be no further use of live facial recognition until these recommendations have been addressed.  That is 

something that we have as an agreement between us and the MPS. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Thank you very much.  Obviously, this is the LPEP and there is more to this, ie there are legal 

issues as well.  We have had two Government Commissioners, the Surveillance Camera Commissioner, 

Tony Porter, and the Biometrics Commissioner, Paul Wiles, who have both said very critical things about facial 

recognition and the fact that there is no current legal basis for this. 

 

Will you also say that there will not be any further use of facial recognition until there is a legal basis in line 

with what those Commissioners have recommended? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  One of the recommendations and one of the key 

things coming out of the LPEP report was the need for national regulation and a national legal framework.  We 

are lobbying very hard on that because the police are in the position where they, rightly, want to use new 

technology to help keep the community safe. 

 

One of the things coming out of the LPEP report was an interesting poll of Londoners around the appropriate 

use of live facial recognition and the scale.  There is backing from the public around much more serious 

offences and the use of live facial recognition and then, going down the scale, less agreement to the use of 

live facial recognition for the less serious offences. 

 

Yes, we are lobbying hard and, absolutely, the Government needs to step into this space.  We had the judicial 

review of the South Wales Police.  I understand it is likely to come to a decision over the summer, although I do 

not know when that is.  That will also be an important moment in the use of this technology.  We do need to 

make sure that that regulation and a framework is in place to enable the police to use technology when it is 

ethically right to do so to keep our community safe. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Thank you very much.  The Commissioner of Police [of the Metropolis] herself has said that 

it is not for the police to decide where the slider should sit on the balance between security and privacy.  She is 

also keen to wait, but I cannot speak for her because she is not here today.  It seems to me that what you have 

said to us is that you, with the powers you have, will prevent its use until we have a legal basis and those 

ethical conditions are met. 

 

Page 23



 

 
 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  We were clear when the LPEP published its 

recommendations that we expect that the use of live facial recognition will not take place again until the 

recommendations have been addressed. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Thank you.  Are you keeping oversight of ways in which the police might be doing work in 

the background, ie not deploying things but compiling watchlists, using facial recognition technology on 

images that might already exist and things like that that are not live facial recognition but are nevertheless 

things that might be of concern legally and ethically towards the use of images of people and using facial 

recognition software on that? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  In terms of some of your questions around 

different organisations and different businesses coming to the MPS, I do not have sight of all the different 

conversations that happen or the different approaches from businesses around the use of whatever technology 

is coming in.  Rightly, because the MPS is such a huge organisation, it will come to me when an investment 

decision is there to be taken around purchasing or procuring the investment. 

 

However, yes, of course there is oversight in terms of ensuring and the [MOPAC/MPS] Audit Panel will also 

have oversight in terms of ensuring that there are the proper frameworks, the proper risks and the proper 

accountabilities in place. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Thank you. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  First of all, Deputy Mayor, can I say how much we support the line that you are taking on 

this one?  Our view is that so long as this is a legal process, people who have nothing to hide have nothing to 

fear from this technology. 

 

Specifically, I would like to ask Mr Simmons whether it is true that in the experiments that you have had and 

the trials of this, leaflets were dished out saying, “We have these facial recognition techniques in place”.  Did 

such a thing happen? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  If I was a criminal and my face was known, and I had seen the notice, I would not come in 

and therefore I would not be recognised.  Is it not a fairly self-defeating thing?  Maybe that has contributed to 

the high failure rate that there has been in the experiments. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I absolutely take the point about forewarning.  If there 

comes a point when we are using the technology in an operational context as opposed to testing it, then would 

make decisions around tactically how we do that in order to get the maximum impact.  This was a test.  We 

wanted to be transparent around that.  We gave the information out to people about what we were doing.  We 

thought that was important given the current position around the newness of the technology and the public 

interest. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  I, naturally, understand that point.  The principal thing that the LPEP said was that there 

has to be confidence in the system.  You were contributing in your experiment to there being a lack of 

confidence. 

 

Page 24



 

 
 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I take your point.  It is a balance.  We were seeking to 

test the technical side.  I understand the point, absolutely.  That may have influenced the number of 

identifications that came from the equipment.  That is an unknown, of course, but we have a balance between 

testing the operational ability of it and wanting to be transparent.  We do not want the public to feel that we 

are trying to do things in a hidden way. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Perhaps finally on this - I am not sure - but for the sake of 

balance, this is another yes/no question, which we do like.  Notwithstanding all the proper checks and 

balances and legal frameworks and independent investigations, would you agree that facial recognition 

technology has the capacity and potential to make Londoners considerably safer? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Thank you. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, but it does need to be done in an ethical 

and balanced way.  That is important. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  In fairness to me, I did preface my question with that. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  You did, but it is important.  These yes/no 

questions are interesting, but it is important.  These are complicated and complex issues. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Yes.  This has been exercised at length.  I just wanted that simple 

yes/no.  Thank you, Chair. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Thank you.  Moving on to the next set questions on crime levels, 

Assembly Member Arbour, will you lead off? 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Yes.  This is the question I have been tasked to give you, Mr Simmons.  What is your 

assessment of current crime levels in London? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am never happy.  I am never content with crime levels 

in London.  There are a significant number of challenges for us now in terms of a range of different crimes and 

so we take a number of different perspectives on this.  When we look at the national comparison, particularly 

with other metropolitan forces, that is one of the things we look at to form an assessment of how we look 

against the national benchmark, but of course at heart the main thing we want to do is to reduce crime as 

much as we can for Londoners and in London. 

 

At the moment, you know that there has been huge concern and still remains huge concern about levels of 

violence.  That is still too high, albeit we are, we feel, making some progress, but then we look at the events of 

the last couple of weekends and we absolutely understand that we cannot be complacent around that. 

 

We had something like a 2% rise in burglary in the last year.  That is lower than certainly many other parts of 

the UK, but we are not complacent around that.  Clearly, we have work in hand to try to stem the position on 

burglary and to address that. 

 

Page 25



 

 
 

The area that is linked with the issues around violence and clearly causes concern, but again that we are 

working on very intensively at the moment, is the position around robbery in certain parts of London.  Again, 

there is lots of work going on in those locations to address that. 

 

There is never a level of crime where we are going to say it is OK.  On the violence stuff, there is a huge 

amount of work still to do on violence both by us and by the other parties that have a role to play in reducing 

violence.  That is still enormous.  When I talk about the progress we are making, I absolutely do not want to 

give the impression that that is complacency in the face of some of the horrendous tragedies, including the 

news from last night, that some that we have seen over recent weeks and months. 

 

There is lots of work going on, lots of work to address both the acquisitive and the violent crime challenges for 

us and, within that, some significant decisions around prioritisation. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Yes.  Nobody would say that the MPS is complacent about crime levels because there is 

nothing to be complacent about, but you have referred only to serious and violent crime.  Is it likely that the 

amount of crime that does not fall into those categories not being reported is rising, ie the fact that there are 

no prosecutions and police are unwilling to take action over a huge range of crimes, for example, shoplifting, 

housebreaking where there is no physical evidence?  When the public believes that the police are not going to 

take any action, they are not going to report an offence having taken place.  Does that in fact flatter the crime 

levels? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  No.  We are conscious of the potential issues that you 

talk about.  Our experience and the research is that crimes like burglary tend to be reported or rather there is 

not a significant variation in the level of reporting, partly because of the links to insurance claims and so forth.  

We track the victim surveys that are done across the UK and in London as well and so we see whether there are 

any variations in there that we should pick up that tell us that the situation you have described as a possibility 

is actually happening.  We do not see any evidence of that at the moment.  I am not going to say that that 

could not happen, but we do not see any evidence of that and the crime figures we are seeing do not support 

that.  The other ways of assessing levels of crimes through victim surveys, again, do not support the contention 

that we have an increased under-reporting of crime and in some areas, we know we have had significant 

increases in reporting of crime. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  It is a fact, though, is it not, that satisfaction with the police service is in fact declining? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes, satisfaction has been declining for some time.  The 

position is a bit more uncertain at the moment.  I am not going to rest too much on some signs of 

improvement in victims’ satisfaction over the last period.  We cannot put too much on that because it is not a 

long enough period to be able to say that anything significant has changed. 

 

Yes, I am very aware of the challenges around victim satisfaction.  We have put in place a number of measures 

to deal with that.  We know some of that was linked with the move towards a greater degree of online and 

telephone reporting of crime.  We have invested heavily in the training for our staff who are dealing with 

people on the telephone when they call in to report crime.  We think that is having a beneficial effect.  It is too 

early to say for certain but early signs are that that is having a beneficial effect. 

 

We have changed some of our processes on some types of crimes.  We reviewed the crime assessment policy 

some months ago and changed the criteria in there to open more discretion around the crimes that should be 

Page 26



 

 
 

allocated for further investigation.  We are making changes currently, some of which we have started to put in 

place, around the way we deal in particular with domestic burglary and robbery. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  I have clearly given you the opportunity to read your brief. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Sorry, I am not reading my brief.  This is stuff I live and 

breathe every day and -- 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Can I move to something specific, which is borough crime priorities?  When boroughs 

select what their crime priorities are, does that actually have any effect on crime levels for those offences in 

those particular boroughs? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  If you take something like burglary, for example, 

something like 23 boroughs - from memory - have burglary as a local priority within the borough.  We know we 

have very wide-ranging differences at the moment in terms of the experience around burglary in different parts 

of London.  In some places, that is having an impact.  In other places, the challenge is greater.  Whether that is 

linked with whether it is a priority or not it is quite a difficult connection to make. 

 

The focus we have on violence means that the capacity to put a lot of resource into the local priorities is 

limited by the focus on violence, notwithstanding that a significant number of boroughs - and I am afraid I 

cannot remember the number overall but it is the majority - have some aspects of violence as local priorities as 

well as they are priorities for us right across London.  Separating out what is because it is a local priority and 

what is because it is a priority for the MPS and for London as a whole is a tricky thing to do in terms of causal 

links. 

 

What we do think is that where it is a local priority, where partners sign up and where we work with groups in 

the community on those priorities, we know the activity that goes on and we think that is beneficial and links 

with what people in that particular part of London say they want us to focus on. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Yes.  I have the priorities in front of me for my own patch, which has an inner London 

borough and three outer London boroughs in it.  All of them have burglary as a priority.  The difference 

between the one inner London borough and the three outer London boroughs in my patch, which is South 

West, is very striking.  It has been suggested that maybe - and I have not mentioned the specific point - in the 

one inner London borough the effect of the burglary priority has been a very substantial improvement 

compared to what has been happening in the outer London boroughs.  There is a suggestion that resources 

may be being pulled out of the three outer London boroughs to help the inner London borough.  How would I 

challenge that? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I will treat that as a rhetorical question but -- 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  No, I do want to know how I challenge it. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Your challenge, I mean, of course.  If I take the four 

boroughs in the South West BCU, I know that they are not quite coterminous with yours.  Wandsworth is an 

inner London borough with a 6% rise in burglary.  Richmond is, we would say, an outer London borough with a 

14% decrease in burglary.  Kingston has about a 9% increase in burglary and so -- 

 

Page 27



 

 
 

Tony Arbour AM:  No, Mr Simmons.  I am looking at the list of priorities and I am looking at a quarterly 

figure.  It is true that there has been a very recent improvement, but if I look at the quarter January to March 

2018/19 compared with the quarter January to March 2017/18, there was a move completely the other way, 

according to the figures that I had provided to me, in Wandsworth.  I am of course not dissing in any way the 

very recent improvement and there has been very substantial shock at the very large increase in the amount of 

burglary there had been in the quarters that I am making a comparison for. 

 

I do want to know how I can say, contrary to the popular belief, that the outer London boroughs are being 

robbed to flatter the figures for the inner London borough? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Firstly, the figures I was quoting were over 12 months.  It 

is important to bear in mind that we do have spikes of particular crimes depending on groups of offenders and 

series that happen and, as you would expect, I look both at short-term and longer-term figures myself as well.  

Part of the benefit of the model we have operating across more than one borough is that when an individual 

borough has a spike in burglary, for example, there is more flexibility to use the resource to target that and 

then move to the other locations where the problem presents itself. 

 

If I take the boroughs that I mentioned just now as examples, prior to the mergers, the crime squad that would 

be used to proactively target burglars in Kingston was four officers to target a team of burglars and potentially 

any other problem that was arising because that was a very small borough in staff numbers.  What they now 

have is a much more substantial proactive capability - not as large as we would like - that is able to target 

different problems in different parts of the borough. 

 

For example, in a borough like Kingston, we put significant effort in over months, culminating in a series of 

raids that were done a few weeks ago, into targeting drug lines that were driving both violent and acquisitive 

crime in a borough like Kingston, which in other circumstances would not have been able to attract the kind of 

resource to do that as an individual borough on its own.  That does not mean that we are ignoring the inner 

boroughs and the boroughs that have that very high level of intensity of crime and demand at the expense of 

outer boroughs either.  What it does mean is that our model allows us to be more flexible in using the right 

resource to tackle different types of crime wherever they emerge in London. 

 

We know last year during the Pathfinder [project] we had a very significant spike in burglary in the two outer 

boroughs in east London.  We were able to - and I would have liked us to have been quicker to have done it - 

flex the resource we needed to tackle that into place; where you see those boroughs now on the outskirts of 

East London have some of the highest levels of burglary reduction at the moment, some of that for obvious 

reasons. 

 

When we look at the quarterly figures we do see fluctuations.  There are two boroughs in London - none of the 

ones you have mentioned, in fact - that over the last quarter have had very significant challenges in burglaries 

specific to that quarter.  We are tasking against that and tackling that, so the short-term figures, yes, we are 

flexible in terms of tackling short term crime trends.  We also need to look at what the longer-term impact of 

the work we do is over time with those spikes that happen within that. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  You have given me an explanation I can use about directing the resources.  Of course, I 

have to say that the Borough Commander, Chief Superintendent Benetar, is well aware of this relief that the 

locals have.  After all, we are all taxpayers.  It does not look terribly good. 

 

Page 28



 

 
 

The next thing I would like to ask you about, please, is the effect of the increased level of stop and search.  

What affect has that had on the decrease in violent crime? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Our judgment is that the increased level of stop and 

search has been a significant factor in suppressing violent crime across London, where it has been used in that 

targeted way that we described, based on the intelligence, based on the patterns of crime, and by officers 

whom we are confident are well-trained and skilled in the use of the tactic. 

 

Drawing an exact causal link between any tactic and the results is always difficult and there comes a point 

where you have to make a judgment.  It is our judgment that that has been a significant part in the reduction 

in the number of young people who have been stabbed - people of all ages have been stabbed, actually, but 

particularly young people - notwithstanding the tragedies of recent weeks, on the overall homicide figures for 

the last 12 months. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  We have been provided with very interesting statistics, which begin in April 2008, on stop  

and search going up to the current level.  Am I not right in thinking that it was in 2007 that the old ‘sus’ laws 

went?  I am asking you because you will remember. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am probably one of the few people in the MPS at the 

moment who can remember the ‘sus’ laws, only for a very early part of my career. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  Of course. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  It was the Police and Criminal Evidence Act that 

effectively did away with the ‘sus’ laws.  That was passed in 1984, of course, and fully implemented in 1986, if 

I remember rightly, a bit more recently than that.  I am tempted to talk about the Metropolitan Police Act of 

1839, which was the legislation I had to learn for ‘sus’ as it was coming out. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  The gravamen of my question was going to be that in those days, when there were no 

rules and regulations and so on, as far as you are concerned and your memory of this, do you think that the 

fact that there were no such regulations as we have nowadays relating to stop and search, was the level of 

crime lower, particularly knife crime? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Patterns of crime now compared to 1982, which is my 

first experience of policing, are so significantly different that drawing comparisons is difficult.  If you would 

indulge me just for a moment, having joined just after the 1981 Brixton disorders and having seen some of the 

disorders that carried on through the 1980s and the relationship between police and communities behind that, 

what I am really clear on - with the perspective of 38 years of policing in London - is how different our 

approach to the use of stop and search is now. 

 

I would say that we are much more targeted, much more considered and much more effective in our use of the 

tactic now than we have ever been.  Frankly, I do take considerable pride in the changes over that period of 

time and particularly in the work that people are doing at the moment. 

 

Tony Arbour AM:  You would not subscribe to the view that we should have a permanent section 60 in 

London? 

 

Page 29



 

 
 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  No.  There is a lot of significance attached to section 60 

and it is a very important tool for us.  Of course, section 60 accounts for quite a low proportion of the overall 

stop-and-search activity that is undertaken.  Members of course will know why section 60 is important because 

of how it allows us to use powers over a limited period, with the right authority, where there is specific 

intelligence around what may occur or there has been a specific incident that we need to respond to, but no I 

do not adhere to that view.  However, section 60 is an important tool for us and we do encourage our officers 

to use section 60 - to authorise section 60 at the right level - where that is the appropriate response to either 

anticipated incidents of violence or incidents that have happened.  Clearly it is having that balance. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  This is a question for the Deputy Mayor, please.  Would you say that London is less safe now 

than it was three years ago? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  There is a significant problem with violence in the 

streets of London and nationally.  You have heard the statistics over the last year.  We are absolutely not 

complacent because we have had such a terrible month and had such terrible murders.  We are beginning to 

see the early signs of violence decreasing in London.  That is a result - you have already asked about - of 

significant police enforcement but, also, significant partnership working to try to support those young people, 

who are likely to pick up a knife and likely to cause violence and prevent them from doing so. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, I agree with all of that but the actual question: would you think that London is less safe 

now than it was three years ago? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  We have seen crime and violence rising since 

2014 and it has been rising in London and it is rising more significantly outside London as well. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  No, let us just concentrate -- 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  In the last year - and it is very early stages, and 

we are not complacent and we do not know if it is a trend - we are beginning to see it come down. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  To go back to the question that I keep trying to ask you, would you say that London was 

safer now or less safe than it was three years ago? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  My answer to that is that the violence began to 

rise in 2014.  If you look at the graphs, you can see that very clearly rising in 2014 in London and it has been 

rising nationally as well. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  The Mayor, of course, thinks it is safer now than it was three years ago. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  As I have said, violence began to rise in 2014.  If 

you look at all the graphs you can see that happening, rising in London and outside London as well. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Deputy Mayor, we will stop because you are not going to give a yes/no answer to that.  The 

Mayor did.  He thinks we are safer, which is extraordinary, as we know. 

 

If I can ask you a quick question about the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU), the VRU is supposed to be having 

two reports being produced in July [2019].  The homicide and serious case review is one and there is a 

Page 30



 

 
 

strategic needs assessment to explore the underlying causes of violence.  Do you have sight of either of those 

reports? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Both of those reports are being commissioned 

and are being worked on at the moment.  I am not completely sure whether they will be published this side of 

summer but they are being worked on and are in progress. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  They were supposed to be ready in July.  Can we certainly have copies of them when they 

are out? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Absolutely, they will be published on the website 

and we will send them to you when they are produced.  The work was quickly procured, undertaken.  It is not 

being undertaken by the VRU.  That has been put out.  The serious homicide one is being undertaken by a 

consortium with University of Bedfordshire, but of course those will be public documents. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  If you can try and chivvy them along, often these documents go on and on.  Then we find 

various documents are produced after we want to talk about them, but thank you anyway, Chair. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Thank you.  The next set of questions.  Assistant Commissioner, can I ask you 

about something that the Commissioner said in a keynote speech at the Police Foundation lecture last week?  

She said the police would need more resources, better technology and greater skills to tackle rises in crime and 

improve sanction detection rates. 

 

Are you worried about the future?  What does she mean by “greater skills” in particular?  What will the MPS 

look like, say, in five years from now if you do not get that investment in technology, training and money for 

more police officers? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  There are different aspects to the range of issues that 

the Commissioner has talked about, which you have referred to there, Chair.  There is the technical investment 

that we need.  We talked a bit earlier on about digital investigations.  They come into not just the most serious 

crimes we were talking about before but they come into virtually every crime now, even relatively low-level 

drug dealing, for example, the connections, new evidence through phones is a critical part of the evidence.  

The demand goes right through all levels of crime. 

 

There is definitely the technical challenge that we have talked about already.  In the skills challenge, as 

Members will absolutely be aware, we have significantly changed the structure of how we investigate the 

overall volume of crime in London.  Our intention is absolutely that it should be part of the role of every police 

officer in London to be able to investigate certain types of crime to their conclusion.  That is a big change for 

an organisation where, in a different environment, we tended to have lots of squads to do different things.  We 

are still investing heavily in building the skills of those officers.  We have a programme through this coming 

year - well it is less than a year now - through this current financial year to do so, with a training investment of 

people, like Detective Sergeants, to work alongside uniformed officers to help them develop their skills. 

 

At the moment, the changes that we have made to how we deal with crime are still undoubtedly bedding in.  In 

12 months’ time, for example, we will be in a very different place around the skills and capabilities of officers 

investigating crime right across London.  At the same time, you will know that we have a lot of work to try to 

increase the recruitment of Detectives, to make sure Detectives are focused on the crimes that use the 

Page 31



 

 
 

particular skills and training that go with that role, and that we have the numbers able to deal with crimes such 

as the very serious crimes we were talking about earlier on.  There is a lot of work that we are doing to move 

along on those fronts. 

 

Of course, what we cannot get away from is that some aspects of crime are still increasing in terms of the 

demand for officers.  The complexity, whether digital or in other aspects of investigation, continues.  For 

example, the challenges around disclosure, which is linked to some of the technology and is a broad challenge 

for us, are well rehearsed.  The challenge is a significant one.  It is not one where I can say with confidence, “In 

12 months’ time this will be the position we are in” because we talk, for example, about burglary, robbery and 

some of the upward pressures that are being seen nationally around some of those crimes and the context is 

moving continuously. 

 

One of the key points from what the Commissioner said is the importance of - among all the things I have 

talked about in terms of building the skills and capability of officers generally - the role technology can 

potentially play in that.  We touched earlier on in Members’ questions on some of the areas where that is 

significant at the moment. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Thank you for that.  Moving on to the next set of questions on women in the 

criminal justice system, Assembly Member Eshalomi. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Good morning, Assistant Commissioner, Deputy Mayor.  I want to focus on the 

report that we released last year, A Long Way from Home, looking at women in the criminal justice system.  

One of the recommendations we put forward in that report was around how the Mayor could use his power 

and influence to improve the response throughout the criminal justice system for women.  I just want to know 

if there has been any update from MOPAC and the Mayor over the last 12 months on the back of that report. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, and thank you very much to the Assembly 

and the Committee for that really good report in terms of women in the criminal justice system.  Genuinely, 

London is leading the way in this.  I am very happy to give you a table of progress against your 

recommendations; I am happy to give that to you.  I will not read it out now. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  OK.  That would be helpful. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Some real highlights: part of our devolution 

negotiations with the Ministry of Justice (MoJ), and female offending is a key part of that.  There has been a 

lot of progress made with the MoJ around looking at what the budget might look like and how that is working.  

We have had a new women’s centre open up in Islington because there of the Co-Commissioning Fund (CCF), 

and I am sure you will remember that we top sliced some money off the LCPF.  Part of that meant that we 

could open a new women’s centre in Islington being run by Advance and Minerva.  That is now open.  The 

Mayor has -- 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Sorry, just on that because I was going to ask you about that women’s centre, you 

are saying that centre is now open? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  There is a centre open in Islington funded by the 

CCF, yes. 

 

Page 32



 

 
 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Yes.  We knew that that was being co-funded.  If we could get details of that 

because that would be something we would be keen to look at. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Of course, absolutely. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Thank you. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  The Mayor has invested.  We are probably the 

majority commissioner for female offending services in London.  We are certainly outstripping the Ministry of 

Justice.  We have enhanced community provision across 21 boroughs now.  As I said, there is a women’s centre 

open.  We have had good discussions around the whole system approach to female offending, and very shortly 

I hope that all partners and ourselves will formally sign up for a blueprint for London on female offending.  

There is some good work that we have with the Prison Reform Trust. 

 

We have had indications through the London Crime Reduction Board (LCRB) that all partners will be signing up 

to this.  That is a blueprint of a whole system holistic approach to female offending in London.  That is the first 

of its kind in the country, a massive step forward and that has been matched by investment and services as 

well. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  That sounds like there is good, steady progress and - like you said - you will send us 

a more comprehensive update of what has been going on.  It seems like things are going in the right way. 

 

One of the things that we also looked at was the fact of: how do we stop women going through the criminal 

justice system in the first instance.  We appreciate that the issue around sentencing lies with the MoJ and that 

is not something that the Mayor controls, but there was going to be a pilot to help divert women away from 

the criminal justice system.  Has that started and is there any progress you could update us on? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  You are right - and it was one of your 

recommendations - that female offender pilot is starting in August [2019].  It will run until June 2021.  Yes, it 

will run but it will be starting in August. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  We would be grateful if we could have some more details. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes, of course. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  In terms of specifically of which boroughs they will be operating from and which 

women’s groups they will be working with.  That would be great. 

 

Another issue that came that comes up all too often is the issue around out-of-court disposal orders and the 

fact that, again, this could help in terms of not sending - yes, they are offences - some of the smaller offences 

that may not require a sentence.  The rates for that continue to fall.  Assistant Commissioner, do you have any 

reason for why that is not being used and is it something that the MPS should probably be pursuing a bit 

more? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  The latter part of the question is the easier one to 

answer.  We do not fully understand the change in there at the moment.  We know there has been a dramatic 

reduction in the number of women being brought into police custody, for example.  That is down by about 

Page 33



 

 
 

40%-something, so there has been a big overall reduction in the number of women coming into custody.  I am 

not going to state this as a thing because I do not know it to be the case for certain, but if the presumption is 

that those tend to be the more serious offences that are still coming in that might be one of the things that 

links with the reduction in the out-of-court disposals.  I do accept that we need to look at that in more detail 

to understand that better. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Again, one of the things that we touched on was around the triage support and if 

that is something that is going to be looked at in a bit more detail.  Is that your understanding? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes, it is. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  The only other area that I want to focus on is the issue around community 

sentencing.  That is something that was included in the Police and Crime Plan.  Is there anything that you 

could update us on that, Deputy Mayor, in terms of how that will be rolled out and if you are still pushing to 

try to get more of that across London boroughs? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes.  In terms of community sentencing, as part 

of that discussion I talked about the devolution and the second memorandum of understanding (MOU) with 

the MoJ.  Part of that has been subsumed into that with redesigned probation services and our discussions 

around co-commissioning that. 

 

We have also been in discussions with the Department of Health and Social Care (CHSC) as well as the MoJ 

around a community sentence treatment requirement, which will be up and running soon.  It has been 

announced by the Minister of Justice that it will be one of the pilots in the community sentence treatment 

pilots.  That means that as part of the sentencing there will be support for women available.  That is going to 

be tested at the Beth Centre in Lambeth. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  That is good to hear.  One of the things that we specifically did ask, which we did 

not get a response from the Mayor, around the community policing is that, in a sense, women would be 

targeted as a special group in reviewing that community sentencing.  Is that something that you probably want 

to review and maybe look at as part of the review? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Female offenders have been in our discussions 

on devolution with the MoJ, which have been positive.  Female offending is a cohort that has been really 

focused on and, absolutely, it is not just about community sentences and the probation redesign, we are 

focusing on that.  That is why we have managed to make such progress in the other areas that I have talked 

about, as well as the community sentencing treatment requirement.  That was not going to be in London and 

we proactively chased the MoJ to get that into London because it seemed to be such a good step forward in 

terms of: (1) a community centre; but (2) actually ensuring that female offenders get the support that they 

need to ensure that they do not reoffend and they are not going back into custody into prison when they 

should not have been there in the first place. 

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  That is good because definitely looking at more creative community sentencing not 

just a blanket, “This is community sentencing for all offenders”, but something that is specifically targeted at 

those female offenders.  I will leave it there, Chair.  Thank you. 

 

Page 34



 

 
 

Peter Whittle AM:  Assistant Commissioner, on the report that Assembly Member Eshalomi referred to there 

about women in the criminal system, one of the things that emerges is that one of the main reasons women 

are in the system is evasion of the TV licence fee.  It might even numerically be the biggest reason and I 

wondered what your view on that was.  It seems incredible.  Would you not say that, if this is the main reason, 

that this is utterly archaic and that these women should not even be in the courts for this reason?  This thing 

should be at least a civil offence or something, but the idea that it is a crime, just even on a cynical level, 

taking up court time, but could you not strongly recommend or lobby that this is changed? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I am not sure that that is a matter for the police because 

we do not investigate or deal with television license offences.  I suspect that is an issue for a different 

prosecuting authority. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  It is the main reason women are in the criminal justice system. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Not through the police processes. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Anyway, that is the main reason that they end up in court.  That is the reason they are in 

our Assembly’s report and so I would have thought you might have a view on that.  That is all. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I have views on a whole range of things but I suppose, in 

terms of the police involvement, it is not in that territory and so ... 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  You might not be involved but the mere fact they end up there surely has a knock-on 

effect in terms of procedure and time. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  It is important for the criminal justice system to be 

focused on the issues that are most important for society as a whole. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Absolutely, and not paying a TV licence fee is not it really, is it? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  It is important the criminal justice system supports 

desistance from criminal activity and so on but, beyond that, it is not really an area for me. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Thank you. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Deputy Mayor, in all the discussions, you talked about the devolution agenda 

with the MoJ, which has been going on for some time.  I may have not heard you say it and you may have 

done, but when are you likely to have this whole package signed?  There is a lot going on here and it would be 

helpful when it is ready if we could perhaps have a briefing on it. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I would be happy to arrange a separate briefing 

on the MOU we have already signed.  We have signed an MOU - the first one - which had some significant 

devolution.  For example, we had the devolution of the witness service plus the witness service budget and so 

we have now re-procured an integrated victims and witness service, which is again one of the first in the 

country.  Certainly, my colleagues, Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) around the country, have been 

asking me, “How did you do that?” 

 

Page 35



 

 
 

In terms of the second MOU, I went into the MoJ yesterday and had two meetings with Edward Argar [MP, 

Under Secretary for Justice] and Robert Buckland [MP, Minister of State for Prisons] to talk about devolution.  

I am very keen and they are very keen to get on and sign it.  This is a genuine issue.  It will depend on what 

happens with the next Prime Minister.  Will those Ministers still be there?  Will they be able to take those 

decisions?  If not, that will delay things. 

 

It has been going on for some time and, to be fair to the officials and the MoJ, it is not because they do not 

want to do this but actually - and I am sorry to talk about this here at the Police and Crime Committee - Brexit 

has had an impact because officials have been taken off and it has not been -- 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It has had an impact on the Government, of course. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  You can sigh, Peter, but it is true. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Deputy Mayor, get it out of your system and then we can move 

on. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  It is very frustrating because -- 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Nothing else is happening. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  -- on the devolution package, we have been on 

the verge of making quite substantial progress, especially around female offending. 

 

Your point, Peter [Whittle], around debt and women in prison absolutely stands.  There are too many women 

in prison who are there for small offences who would be far better served - and the community and their 

families would be far better served - if they had good community sentences and good rehabilitation services to 

enable them not to reoffend.  This has been delayed and decisions are not being taken because of that. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  OK, thank you. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Moving on to the next section, finances, Assembly Member Hall. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Thank you.  This is to start with for the Deputy Mayor, please.  The MOPAC out-turn 

position at the end of March is a net underspend of only 0.4% against the gross budget.  What has been the 

key, do you think, to this success? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Overall with the MPS budget or are you talking 

about separately, sorry? 

 

Susan Hall AM:  The out-turn position at the end of March.  I am being positive for a change here, Deputy 

Mayor. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  That is why I was so taken aback. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  I know it is a shock to you.  Take a deep breath.  There is more to come, do not worry, but 

on this particular subject how have you done so well with your underspend as in nearly coming in on budget? 

Page 36



 

 
 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  If you are talking about MPS as well as MOPAC, I 

know there has been in terms of over the last couple years - both within MOPAC and MPS - significant 

improvements around financial management, monitoring of decisions and monitoring of spend.  There has 

been a significant improvement on that.  It is not to say that it does not need to get better but there has been 

significant improvement, both within the MPS and within MOPAC, in order to be able to get to the point 

where there are still underspends but, in terms of the volume and the size of the budget, they have done 

pretty well to get to that point. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes.  We are in agreement.  Hang on to that.  How likely is the MPS to reach its target of 

31,000 officers in 2019/20? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I have had discussions with Robin Wilkinson 

[Director of Human Resources, MPS] from the management board on this last week, as part of investment 

advisory and as part of the meetings I have already talked about today.  I am told we are on track to get to 

31,000 police officers by the end of the calendar year.  It is certainly something that I know Robin and his team 

are absolutely focused on.  Every sinew has been strained to make sure that they get the applicants in, that 

they train them and get them through the process and that they are out on the street by the end of the year. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, it is a great shame it cannot come earlier because I am practically sick to death of 

listening to Mayor Khan screaming that there is not enough money for officers, when in actual fact the money 

is in place for those officers.  It is not the Government’s fault that the MPS is incapable of getting new recruits.  

Why is it taking so long?  He announced £5 million to go towards training not this February but the February 

before [2018] and yet it took until September/October [2018] to start putting all that into place. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  As you will know, I am sure you will have been 

briefed by the MPS on recruitment processes and you will also know that, in terms of budget setting, the vast 

majority of the money comes from the Government.  We do not get and the MPS does not get certainty 

around the budgets for financial years.  Allocation of funding is not certain until January/February when the 

financial year starts in April.  You cannot recruit and train police officers knowing the money is not going to be 

there in April.  You cannot just turn on a tap.  It does take - and the time it takes has come down - nearly nine 

months to recruit and train an officer. 

 

Because the Government will not give multi-year funding settlements to the police - not just the MPS but 

across the country they are calling out for this - you are going to get fluctuations in recruitment because of the 

uncertainty of funding.  We are pressing the Government to give multi-year funding so that police forces - the 

MPS in particular because that is our concern - are able to plan and plan properly ahead in terms of 

recruitment. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, I hear what she says but then last year there was money in the budget for 30,750 and at 

one point you got down to 28,000 or slightly more.  Last year you did not have the number of officers that you 

actually had the money in the budget for. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Because of Government funding, police officer 

numbers have fallen and did fall below 30,000.  They have never gone to 28,000. 

 

Page 37



 

 
 

Susan Hall AM:  Deputy Mayor, if you actually had the number of officers that you have the money for, there 

would not be such a bad situation.  The truth is - certainly, even going back to last year - you did not have the 

officers that you had the money for.  That is why you have such an incredibly large overspend relating to police 

officer overtime. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  There is a net underspend of £11 million, which 

you will have seen in the accounts, on police officer pay.  I come back to the fact that the Government only 

give annual settlements to the police forces, not just the MPS but across the country. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, you said that. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  It means it is very difficult. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  I understand that. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  We cannot recruit officers at the drop of a hat.  It 

takes time to recruit them and there will be some variation and fluctuation in recruitment but, in terms of: will 

we get to 31,000?  I am promised that we are on track for that to get to 31,000.  What the MPS need is  

multi-year funding, so that we do not get fluctuations in police officer numbers in the way that we have seen. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Deputy Mayor, there was not the number of officers last year - in the last financial year - 

that you had the money for, so you were not recruiting properly last year either or the year before.  It is no 

good saying that there are not enough police.  I agree with that and I would put a lot more. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  I know you do. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  You know our budget amendment allowed for an extra 1,400 police on the streets, because 

we passionately believe there should be more police officers.  I also passionately believe that if you have the 

money in the budget for more officers than you have, it is disingenuous to then blame the Government for not 

enough money when there is the money in there for officers. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  We are not really going to get much further on 

this because -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  No, we are not.  We are not. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  -- the real issue is around proper funding from 

the Government to ensure that the police officer numbers cannot just be maintained but can increase.  In order 

to do that we need multi-year funding and we need the Government -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, you said that three times now. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Because it is true. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Deputy Mayor, the simple fact is this: if you put the amount of police officers that you have 

the money for then start moaning about the Government.  Until such time, do not blame other people for the 

inadequacies of not getting enough police officers in place. 

Page 38



 

 
 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  You are probably the only person that does not 

go through that.  In terms of recruitment of police officers, it takes up to nine months to recruit a police 

officer. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, I know that as well. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  If you are given your settlements only a couple of 

months in advance -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  I know all of that. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  -- it is very difficult to plan.  If then you also 

know that there are millions of pounds to come out of the budget, you have to plan, and you have to plan 

robustly but you have to plan - I am sorry to use the word - crudely. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Deputy Mayor, you can repeat it as many times as you like but the fact is you need to get 

the people that you have the money for in place.  I will move on. 

 

The MPS accounts show that the amount in business rates allocated for the police is £220 million from the 

business rates this year.  That is up from £92.5 million last year and so it is quite a large increase.  What does 

our future MPS business rates funding look like? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  That is going to be a matter for the Mayor’s 

budget in terms of setting the -- as you will know, the last budget the Mayor has taken the decision to divert 

business rates into the MPS budget, so that will be a matter for the budget going forward when the Mayor’s 

sets his next budget. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  He has given you no indication as to whether it would be around, though? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  We can be pretty safe to presume as we all know 

that policing and keeping London safe is the Mayor’s number one priority.  He will do everything he can to 

ensure that police officer numbers increase and stay at the level they should be.  I am sorry to say this: the 

Government is going to have to put its hand in its pocket. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  If you are sorry to say it then perhaps do not say it. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Both of your leadership candidates now have 

said, absolutely, that the cuts to policing have gone too far, been promised.  The Home Secretary [Sajid Javid 

MP], when he was a leadership candidate, was promising extra police officers. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, so spend your money properly.  If you have enough money for a certain number of 

officers, then make sure you have the officers.  I will leave it there.   

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  We will move on to the last set of questions. 

 

Page 39



 

 
 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Under the inspired new chairmanship, we are moving on really 

quickly.  This is fantastic! 

 

The context of this, if I may, is the visit by the Health Committee, which I am on as Deputy Chairman, to the 

Archway Children’s Centre and a work that we are doing there.  It was interesting to go to this fantastic centre 

and to hear this phrase used a lot.  It is clearly a phrase that is embedded with the education health 

community, which is ‘toxic trio’.  I was a bit surprised because all the work that we had done on the VRU - and 

I have been around probably far too long - I had never heard that term before and so I am interested to see the 

read across between the education/health toxic trio across to the sphere of violence.  Particularly, bear in 

mind, we do know very much about the phrase ‘adverse childhood experiences’ (ACEs).  There is a read across 

the two. 

 

I will start off the questions on this subject to Mark, if I may.  What work has the MPS undertaken specifically 

targeting what is phrased as the ‘toxic trio’?  Just a reminder for those in the audience and those many people 

watching that the trio is domestic violence and abuse, substance misuse and mental health issues.  That is the 

trio.  Mark, do you want to comment on this? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes, certainly.  Thank you.  I have not heard the phrase 

‘toxic trio’ before, either.  It is fair to say that we recognise that on any of the three issues that are part of the 

toxic trio, there are a whole range of interconnected issues.  You could broaden it out from those three, 

probably, in terms of interconnected issues. 

 

One of the first things that we have been trying - notwithstanding the challenges around where we are in 

terms of the new structures - one of the key things we were trying to do by bringing together different parts 

of the MPS that respond to support people in domestic abuse and other aspects of need that we were making 

that more joined up and more integrated, so the safeguarding setups on the BCUs.  There is a mental health 

hub that sits alongside those to try to co-ordinate that work, join up that work better, as well as mental health 

issues that affect other areas of policing, of which Members will know that that is substantial. 

 

On substance misuse, again the MPS’s drug strategy talks about our work on drugs.  A lot of our focus, it is fair 

to say, is around the drugs as a driver for violence.  That does include where that is violence in the home or in a 

relationship, and so it is fair to say we are conscious of the overlap, the link, the kind of interconnectedness of 

the issues. 

 

You referred to the ACEs work.  We know that brings into focus where those issues join up and there is work 

we are doing on how the understanding of ACEs fits into policing practice and how officers work.  Similarly, the 

trauma-informed practice that brings in some of the impacts of those different experiences and the cumulative 

experiences that people have of different issues that would come together in this way.  That is all good work 

that is happening at the moment.  In this development now, some of these concepts are relatively new for 

policing but very important for us as we look forward in terms of our approach. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Yes, indeed, the trauma-informed approach was something that I 

was not particularly sighted on and was learning about.  We understand also in that context the MPS is 

planning to visit Merseyside Police who are further ahead.  I know the MPS always likes to go along to find out 

if someone is doing something better than they are, which is rare, of course, Mark.  What is your understanding 

about that visit and the learnings to come out of that? 

 

Page 40



 

 
 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Apologies, I do not have the details of that visit, I am 

afraid, but I will find that out and we can pass that on. 

 

Just as an aside, we are very keen to learn from colleagues across the country and recognise that policing is a 

team exercise across the whole of the UK. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Before I turn to the Deputy Mayor’s comments around this, a 

very good example that the MPS is involved in is Operation Encompass, which Mark can tell us more detail 

about.  My understanding is that it is a joint agency that is supporting children and young people.  The object 

is when a child or young person is exposed to a domestic abuse incident one evening within this operation 

area, it allows your officers to report to the school before the start of the next day so that the school is sighted 

on potential issues.  Do you want to put a bit more detail around that, Mark? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I can put a little bit more detail around it, but I do not 

know if it will be as much as you wish at this stage.  Encompass is an important initiative for us.  We have 

briefed right across all the borough safeguarding teams and the particular people who are involved in the 

Multiagency Safeguarding Hubs teams on Encompass.  It is fair to say it is in different stages of development 

in different parts of London.  Part of the implementation of it involves negotiation with local authorities 

around how we jointly work on the initiative.  It is fair to say that, yes, we think it is a good thing to do but it is 

work in progress at the moment.  I hope to be able to report further progress over coming months as we 

continue the work on it. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Are you able to tell us today, for example, how many boroughs, 

how many schools and how many incidents have been reported?  Do you have that sort of information? 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  I do not have that with me, I am afraid, but I will find 

that. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Could you write to us?  That could be really helpful. 

 

Mark Simmons (Assistant Commissioner, MPS):  Yes, absolutely. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Deputy Mayor, on this issue of the trauma-informed approach, 

we have heard about Operation Encompass.  Do you want to tell us about the Mayor’s response to that, in 

particular perhaps the commissioning process and your thoughts around what you have heard today around 

that area? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  You have mentioned yourself the ACEs and that 

is very much, as you will know, part of the strategy with the VRU and how you tackle ACEs with really early 

prevention intervention to try to ensure that those with ACEs do not mean that those young people go on to 

commit violence or become offenders themselves.  That is very much at the heart of the VRU’s work.  One of 

the papers to the Partnership Reference Group was on ACEs.  We have heard from the Children’s Commissioner 

[for England, Anne Longfield] on that as well. 

 

The trauma-informed approach is one that we flagged up in the Knife Crime Strategy as well that we published 

in 2017.  Our own commissioning does also take that approach in terms of some of the work that we have 

commissioned, for example, the county lines work from Response and Rescue and ABIANDA.  The specialist 

Page 41



 

 
 

service for young women and girls [ABIANDA] is very much taking a trauma informed approach.  The work that 

we do in A&E units via Redthread as well as Oasis is very much a trauma informed approach as well.  It is 

certainly something that is not just on the radar.  It is being embedded in the work that we are doing in 

tackling violence but, also, work that we are commissioning as well. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  OK.  My last point is that these were new phrases to me with a 

read across.  It would be worth you going away and talking to your reference group about: there seems to be a 

whole narrative out there quoting the toxic trio.  Is that a complete read across to the work that the VRU is 

doing so that you are working together, not least using the same phases and the same working together? 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  Yes. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  It seemed a bit of a silo - not mentality, it is the wrong thing - or 

there seemed to be a separation when we were talking to those good people over in Islington, and so I am just 

flagging it up. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  It is helpful to have it flagged but, in terms of the 

toxic trio, with mental health, substance abuse and domestic abuse, it is absolutely a part of the ACEs. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Deputy Chairman):  Indeed. 

 

Sophie Linden (Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime):  That is why, for example, the scope of the VRU is 

what is violence?  That is kind of strange because violence is about domestic abuse as well.  We are being clear 

from the start that we have to be tackling domestic abuse in order to be able to do early prevention work, to 

ensure that children who are much more likely to involved in violence if they have had violence in the home are 

protected, supported and we can tackle domestic abuse as well.  Of course, we have had lots of discussions 

here about mental health, mental health services and the importance of mental health in relation to policing, 

not just demand but in relation to really understanding what is happening. 

 

Mark has already talked about the mental health units that are now in the BCUs.  We have also had discussions 

around drugs and substance misuse and so it is there, maybe using different phrases and terminology.  We may 

need to look at that but that is absolutely within the work. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Chair):  Can I thank our guests for attending today and for their answers to our 

questions? 

Page 42



                                                                      

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions  
 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 September 2019 
 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report sets out for noting actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee.  

 

 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed, ongoing and closed actions arising from 

previous meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report. 

 

 

Meeting of 3 July 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

7.  Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS)  

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to provide: 

 Confirmation about the number of posts that 

were vacant, and the number of posts where 

postholders were on maternity leave or long-

term sick leave and which were not being 

covered in respect of the additional 300 posts 

which had been created to deal with rape and 

sexual violence in Basic Command Units 

(BCUs), broken down by BCU; 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress.  The 

Chair wrote to the 

Assistant 

Commissioner on 

16 July 2019. 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont …  

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
 Confirmation of how many of the current 

digital forensic kiosks were operational; 

 Confirmation about the timescales for the 

next generation of digital forensic kiosks to 

be fully operational in the BCUs; 

 Confirmation as to whether the next 

generation of kiosks to download evidence 

from electronic devices would be compatible 

with the MPS other systems (as highlighted in 

the report of Her Majesty’s Inspector of 

Constabulary, Fire & Rescue Services in 

February 2019) regarding child protection; 

 Confirmation about the MPS’s separate 

investment in digital capability; 

 Confirmation as to whether there were any 

plans to use facial recognition technology at 

Notting Hill Carnival; 

 Confirmation as to whether the MPS planned 

to collaborate with private companies to use 

their technology for facial recognition; 

  

 

 

 

 Confirmation as to whether there had been 

any discussions with companies about the 

future use of facial recognition technology in 

body worn cameras; 

 Details of the MPS’s visit to Merseyside 

Police to learn about their work on trauma-

informed policing; and 

 Confirmation of how many boroughs and 

schools were involved with operation 

Encompass and how many incidents were 

reported as a result. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont … 

 

Page 44



 

 

 During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to: 

 Provide the latest figure for the number of 

victims of rape and serious sexual assault who 

were referred to Havens during the last year; 

 Provide copies of the reports MOPAC had 

commissioned on the homicide and serious 

case review and strategic needs assessment to 

explore the underlying causes of violence 

once they had been published; 

 Provide a table of progress against the 

Committee’s recommendations in its report, A 

Long Way from Home; 

 Provide details of the new women’s centre, 

funded by the Co-Commissioning Fund, 

which had opened in Islington; 

 Provide information about the pilot project to 

help divert women from the criminal justice 

system, which was due to start in August 

2019; and 

 Provide a briefing on the parts of the criminal 

justice system, which it was anticipated would 

be devolved to the Mayor. 

In progress.  The 

Chair wrote to the 

Deputy Mayor for 

Policing and Crime 

on 16 July 2019. 

Deputy Mayor for 

Policing and Crime 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

 

Meeting of 4 June 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

8. 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS)  

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to: 

 Provide the full costs of policing the visit of the 

President of the United States; 

 Provide the full costs proceeding against those 

arrested in connection with the Extinction 

Rebellion protests;  

 Provide the average time for the vetting 

process for Independent Custody Visitors; 

 Provide the average time for the vetting 

process in general; 

 Look into whether it would be possible to 

extend term for Independent Custody Visitors 

who were going through the renewal process; 

and 

 Provide the number of vulnerable adults/ 

children interviewed without an appropriate 

adult present in 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress - a 

follow up request 

for the actions was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to: 

 Consider the way violence data was shown on 

the Crime Dashboard and include an 

explanation about the data; 

 Discuss with the British Transport Police 

whether it would be possible to include their 

figures for Antisocial Behaviour on public 

transport on the Crime Dashboard; 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont ... 

Page 46



 

 

 
 Provide the number of Independent Custody 

Visitor visits by custody suite; and 

 Provide information on what MOPAC had done 

to support people who wanted to be 

Independent Custody Visitors but their usual 

custody suite had closed and provide the figure 

for how many Independent Custody Visitors 

had given up their role as a result of the 

closure of their usual custody suite. 

 

In progress - a 

follow up request 

for the actions was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MOPAC 

 

 

Meeting of 23 May 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

Hate Crime  

 

 The Policy and Campaigns Officer, Inclusion 

London, agreed to provide comments on 

whether housing providers had a role to help 

disabled people who were being exploited by 

gangs;  

 The Head of Hate Crime Services, Galop, 

agreed to share Galop’s proposal to the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, which 

included different options to scale up CATCH; 

 The Superintendent, MPS, agreed to: 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
- Provide any statistics or achievements in 

relation to removing posts on websites 

which incited hate crime and comment on 

the speed with which those links and 

websites were taken down and from which 

platforms; and 

- Provide in due course the new risk 

assessment procedure being developed to 

help frontline officers deal with hate crime. 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 The Committee delegated authority to the Chair 

of the Committee, in consultation with party 

Group Lead Members and Caroline 

Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree any output from the 

discussion. 

 

In progress Policy Adviser 

 

Page 47



 

 

Meeting of 14 May 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

8. 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS)  

 

  

 During the course of the discussion, the 

Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis 

undertook to:  

 Provide in relation to the policing of the 

Extinction Rebellion, information on the 

number of arrests, reasons for the arrests, 

numbers charged (initial and actual), 

charges dropped and proceeded with, and 

the number of complaints received about 

police conduct;  

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Provide details of the process each detainee 

went through in custody in relation to the 

policing of the Extinction Rebellion; 

 Look into issues relating to the battery life 

of Body Worn Video; 

 Provide the action plan for providing digital 

forensic equipment and training on child 

protection for police officers in Basic 

Command Units, together with the timescale 

for that; 

 Discuss best practice regarding missing 

children with the British Transport Police;  

 Provide examples of materials and guidance 

provided to schools to raise awareness of 

hate crime; 

 Provide separate data on motivated versus 

aggravated hate crime; and 

 Provide the review of the Online Hate Crime 

Hub and lessons learned.  

 

  

Page 48



 

 

 During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to update 

the Committee on progress to ensure there were 

sufficient appropriate adults for children and 

vulnerable adults in custody. 

 

In progress MOPAC 

 

 

Meeting of 6 March 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS)  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to provide: 

 Up to date figures for domestic homicides, 

and an explanation of any changes in the 

classification in relation to the figures; 

 Updates on Operation Dauntless Plus and 

Operation Athena, which were tackling 

domestic abuse;  

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

  Figures on the MPS’s use of “Right to 

Know” under Clare’s Law; and 

 An explanation of the differences in the 

process at a local level for recording and 

investigating allegations of domestic abuse 

and then closing those cases when there are 

no further lines and screening out alleged 

crimes. 

 

  

 In addition, the Deputy Commissioner was 

requested to respond to the following questions: 

 

EU Exit 

 Is the MPS fully prepared for any additional 

operational pressures resulting from the 

UK’s exit from the European Union? 

 What preparations have been made in 
terms of abstractions, cancellation of rest 
days, and mutual aid? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

 
 Where does EU Exit sit on the MPS’s risk 

register?  

 In July 2018, HM Inspectorate of 

Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 

released a report called ‘Understanding the 

Difference’ which was about police forces 

response to hate crime.  The report stated:  

‘We have shown in our report that incidents 

of hate crime ‘spike’ after national events. 

So there is a real possibility that there will be 

a similar increase in reports in 2019 if, as is 

anticipated by the government, the United 

Kingdom formally leaves the European 

Union. Police forces should prepare for this 

eventuality and make sure that the 

recommendations in this report are used in 

the future to improve the police response to 

hate crime victims.’ 

 Do you share the concerns of the 

Inspectorate that there is a real risk of a rise 

in hate crime and if so, what are you doing 

to prepare for this?  

  

  What are the contingencies which are in 

place to replace these EU tools?  Is the MPS 

satisfied that it can operate effectively 

under these arrangements? 

 Have MPS officers been trained to use these 

new contingency procedures?   

  

 
The Met’s ‘PartnershipPlus’ scheme 

 You have set out details of a new scheme, 

the PartnershipPlus scheme, to replace the 

current Met Patrol Plus scheme. Why have 

you chosen this new scheme and what other 

options were considered? 

 One of the reasons given for the review of 

the scheme is the pressures on borough 

budgets. Has there been evidence of 

boroughs pulling out of the current scheme 

on financial grounds? 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont … 

 

Page 50



 

 

 
 How many officers will be affected by 

changes to the scheme? 

 Prior to this announcement the Mayor said 

that officers coming to the end of Met 

Patrol Plus contracts would be reallocated 

to duties within the Basic Command Unit.  Is 

that going to be the case for officers who 

do not transfer over to the new scheme? 

 Where Met Patrol Plus officers do not 

continue under the new scheme, will they 

be retained in the BCU in which they 

currently operate? 

 How many boroughs have registered an 

interest in the new scheme? 

 

  

 

 

Meeting of 12 February 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

Safer Neighbourhood Boards and Ward 

Panels 

 

The Committee agreed to delegate authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with party Group 

Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to 

agree any output from the discussion. 

 

 

 

 

Closed. 

 

 

 

Senior Policy Adviser 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

 

Meeting of 6 February 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to: 

 Share calendar-year data for the sanction 

detection rates for murder in London;  

 Provide the number of police officers who had 

received unconscious bias training and update 

the Committee on the impact of that training; 

 Provide the percentage of complaints that had 

been withdrawn after seeing body-worn videos; 

 Provide the number of complaints that were 

being upheld after the viewing of body-worn 

video, compared to those that were upheld 

before its introduction; and 

 Provide an update on any progress since the 

MPS tested predictive crime mapping software 

in 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 23 January 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

Stop and Search 

 

The Committee agreed to delegate authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with party Group 

Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to 

agree any output from the discussion.  

 

 

 

Closed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

Meeting of 10 January 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to: 

 Update the Committee on the outcome of the 

Crown Prosecution Service examinations into 

three test cases related to demonstrations 

outside Parliament in the run up to the exit 

from the European Union;   

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Brief the Committee in due course on the 

MPS’s examination of the use of “released 

under investigation” and bail measures, in the 

context of recent legislation;  

 Confirm the number of detectives currently 

employed by the MPS; 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Confirm whether the Equality Impact 

Assessment on the Gangs Matrix has been 

completed and if not, when it will be expected 

to be completed; 

 Inform the Committee about how the mental 

health investigation teams were helping 

frontline police officers deal with demand 

arising from persons with mental health issues; 

and 

 Confirm with the Committee the procedures for 

collecting data about sexual harassment within 

the MPS.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont … 

 

Page 53



 

 

7 Police and Crime Committee Work 

Programme 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the 

Chairman, in consultation with party Group Lead 

Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to make 

arrangements for site visits to the Metropolitan 

Police Marine Policing Unit and a police custody 

suite. 

 

 

 

 

In progress for the 

visit to the Marine 

Policing Unit.  The 

Committee has 

now decided not 

to undertake a visit 

to a police custody 

suite. 

 

 

 

Senior Committee 

Officer 

 

 

Meeting of 29 November 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the 

Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis and 

Assistant Commissioner, MPS, undertook to 

provide the materials that the MPS provided to 

schools to educate young people about their 

rights in relation to stop and searches both under 

section 1 of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 

1984 and section 60 of the Criminal Justice and 

Public Order Act 1994. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Partially 

completed: the 

PACE part has 

been answered 

through a response 

to a Mayor’s 

Question. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

Meeting of 4 October 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and the Metropolitan Police 

Service (MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner undertook to provide: 

 An estimate, when available, of the cost of 

running the Airwave contract and the delayed 

Emergency Services Network (ESN) contract 

simultaneously, as part of a phased 

implementation of ESN; and 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

was made on 

22 August 2019. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

  Findings, when available, for the reasons in the 

increase in 999 calls both nationally and in 

London. 

  

 The Committee also requested a response to the 

following question on antisocial behaviour: 

 

What progress has there been in assessing the 

Antisocial Behaviour Warning Notice Scheme in 

Tower Hamlets and piloting it in the Central North 

area? 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 5 September 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to: 

 Inform the Committee of the anticipated 

savings from the disposals of police stations 

and police front counters during this financial 

year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MOPAC 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

 During the course of the discussion the 

Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis 

undertook to: 

 Confirm the number of police officers who 

had to go to hospital because they were spat 

at or bitten during the Notting Hill Carnival; 

and 

 Provide a briefing on the evaluation of the 

pilot of the use of spit guards in custody 

suites. 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on  

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 4 July 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion, the 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 Information in respect of the number of 

people detained as a result of the automated 

facial recognition pilot; 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

  Confirmation of whether Transport for 
London’s cameras at Stratford Station were 
used in the automated facial recognition pilot; 

 Confirmation as to whether the MPS shared 

any intelligence with South Wales Police to 

help them compile their watchlist around 

organised crime groups linked to music 

festivals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 

 

Meeting of 6 June 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 An update on the length of time the MPS was 

taking to examine forensically material relating 

to child exploitation cases; and 

 The number of times the MPS had applied for 

extensions of police bail in the last year, and 

how many individuals this accounted for. 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

 

Meeting of 15 May 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and 

Metropolitan Police Service 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 

 Information about how the MPS ensures that it 

communicated with individuals, as well as 

community groups, in order to build the 

intelligence picture when it deployed the 

Violent Crime Task Force to an area; 

 

 

 

 

In progress - a 

follow up request 

was made on 

22 August 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

  Confirmation of how many trials concerning 

rape and serious sexual assault had been 

abandoned in the last year;  

 Confirmation of how many rape and serious 

sexual assault cases where a decision still 

needed to be made as whether to abandon the 

trial or not; 

 Confirmation of how many harassment and 

how many fraud cases had been reviewed; 

 Confirmation as to whether any of the 

harassment and fraud cases, which had been 

reviewed for disclosure, had been abandoned 

as a result and how many decisions remained to 

be taken; and 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Information about the ways new recruits were 

assessed to ensure that officers are suitable to 

work with London’s diverse communities. 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

Page 58



 

 
Complaints about the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
(DMPC) 

 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

Deadline, 

if 

applicable  

Complaints about the Mayor's 

Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Deputy Mayor for Policing and  

Crime (DMPC) 

   

The Committee agreed, inter alia, to 

delegate to the Monitoring Officer all of 

the powers and functions conferred on 

it by the Elected Local Policing Bodies 

(Complaints and Misconduct) 

Regulations, with the exception of the 

functions set out at Part 4 of the 

Regulations which may not be 

delegated; and guidance on the 

handling of complaints which requires 

the Monitoring Officer to report, on a 

regular basis, the summary details (such 

as can be reported in public), on the 

exercise of any and all of these 

functions to the Committee for 

monitoring purposes. 

 

 

No disclosures to report for 

the period from  

24 June 2019 to 22 August 

2019. 

 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Transparency Procedure    

The Committee agreed Members 

disclose to the Executive Director of 

Secretariat or his nominated 

representative (within 28 days of 

the contact) details of any significant 

contact with the MPS and/or MOPAC 

which they consider to be relevant to 

the work of the Committee; and such 

disclosures be reported to the next 

meeting of the Committee. 

 

No disclosures to report for 

the period from  

24 June 2019 to 22 August 

2019. 

 

 

Executive 

Director of 

Secretariat 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 

3.1   The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer  

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

  
 

 

 
 
 

Page 60

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Question and Answer Session with the 
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the 
Metropolitan Police Service  

 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 4 September 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 

 

 
 
1. Summary  
 
1.1 This report serves as a background paper to the monthly question and answer session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) and the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the Committee notes the monthly report from the Mayor’s Office for Policing and 

Crime, attached at Appendix 1 to the report, as background to the question and answer 

session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police 

Service.    

 

2.2 That the Committee notes the answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 

and the Metropolitan Police Service to the questions asked by Members. 

 
 

3. Background  
 
3.1 The Committee has agreed that it will hold monthly question and answer sessions with the         

Head of MOPAC and invite representation from the MPS.   

 

3.2 MOPAC produces a monthly report providing an update on policing operational and financial 

performance, as well as the activities and decisions of MOPAC.  The report is used to inform 

questions to MOPAC and the MPS at monthly question and answer sessions.  The latest report is 

attached at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



        

4. Issues for Consideration 

 

4.1 Sophie Linden, the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime, will be joined by Sir Stephen House QPM, 

Deputy Commissioner, MPS, to answer questions on the following topics: 

 MOPAC Annual Report (including Vilonce Against Women and Girls); 

 Rape and sexual offences; 

 Violence (including knife crime and stop and search); 

 Operation Midland; 

 Preparations for a no-deal Brexit and the implications for policing in London; and 

 Live facial recognition. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:   

Appendix 1 – MOPAC Monthly report 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None. 

 

Contact Officer: Tanya Lightfoot-Taylor, Policy Adviser 

Telephone: 020 7983 2598 

E-mail: tanya.lightfoot-taylor@london.gov.uk 
 

Page 62

mailto:tanya.lightfoot-taylor@london.gov.uk


   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to the Police and Crime Committee 
 

 
Wednesday 4 September 2019 
10am 
City Hall 
 
 
Sophie Linden  
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
 
 

Appendix 1

Page 63



   

 

0 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
This report is provided to the Police and Crime Committee (PCC) for its 4 September 2019 meeting, to assist 
the Committee to exercise its function in scrutinising and supporting the Mayor’s Office for Policing And 
Crime (MOPAC) and to hold it to account. 
 
This report covers the period from 22 June 2019 to 23 August 2019.  
 
In addition to the range of regular meetings and briefings with key stakeholders, including senior 
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) officers, below are the main activities I have been involved in and/or 
where MOPAC has been represented.  
 
2 MOPAC ACTIVITY REPORT 
 
Knife Crime and Violence 

Throughout the reporting period I have continued to focus on tackling knife crime and violence in London. 

The Mayor and I received regular updates from the Commissioner concerning the Violent Crime Taskforce’s 

activities as well as wider MPS activity. During this time, I have been working closely with the Mayor and the 

Violence Reduction Unit RU Director Lib Peck. 

On 24 June 2019, I met with Cllr Simon Blackburn (LGA Executive, Chairman of the Safer Stronger 

Communities Board) to discuss the work of London’s Violence Reduction Unit and MOPAC’s wider work to 

tackle serious violent crime in London. I was updated on the LGA’s work to raise awareness of county lines 

activity and shared best practice on tackling serious violent crime.  

On 24 June 2019, I met with The Rt Revd Rob Wickham to hear about the work of the Diocese in London 

and discuss collaboration opportunities for the Violence Reduction Unit 

On 25 June 2019, I met with Ben Lindsay (CEO, Power the Fight) to discuss community engagement and the 
ongoing development of the VRU. 
 
On 28 June 2019, I met with Stephen Bediako (Executive Chair, The Social Innovation Partnership [TSIP]) to 
discuss the work MOPAC and the VRU are doing to tackle youth violence. 
 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) 
 
On 12 July 2019 I visited Early Action Together (EAT) in Wales. This was an opportunity to discuss with 

senior stakeholders about the strategic approach taken to identify, mitigate and minimise the impact of ACEs 

Online Harms 
 
On 25 June 2019, I met with Lorin LaFave (Founder, the Breck Foundation) to discuss opportunities to raise 
awareness of online dangers and to promote the responsible use of the internet in schools. 
 
Youth Endowment Fund 
 
On 19 July 2019 I met with representatives of Impetus to discuss the Youth Endowment Fund. 
 
College of Policing 
 
On 4 July 2019, I met Mike Cunningham and Millie Banerjee to discuss the College of Policing’s work on 
police skills, training and development.  

Page 64



   

 

1 
 

Superintendents Association  
 
On the 8 July 2019, I had my quarterly meeting with Detective Chief Superintendent Kate Halpin to discuss 
issues facing superintendents in the Met.  
 
Independent Office of Police Conduct (IOPC) 
 
On 9 July 2019, I had my quarterly meeting with Sal Naseem (IOPC Regional Director for London) and Sarah 
Green (IOPC Regional Director for the South East). 
 
Met Black Police Association (BPA) 
 
On 9 July 2019, I had my quarterly meeting with the Met’s Black Police Association. 
 
Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) 
 
On 10 July 2019, I had my quarterly meeting with the Chief Crown Prosecutors Claire Lindley (London South) 
and Ed Beltrami (London North) 
 
The All-Party Parliamentary Group on Knife Crime 
 
On 16 July 2019, I attended an event organised by the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Knife Crime on 
violence reduction and policing. 
 
Female Offenders 
 
On 17 July 2019, I spoke at the Blueprint for Women launch event. The purpose of this event was to launch 
London’s Blueprint for a Whole Systems Approach to Women in Contact with the Criminal Justice System.  
The Blueprint’s aim is to set out our joint commitment to transform the criminal justice response to women in 
London, recognising the common underlying causes of offending for women, including domestic abuse, 
sexual abuse and coercion, trafficking and exploitation, poverty, homelessness, intersectional discrimination, 
mental health needs, and problematic substance use. 
 
Police Bravery Awards 
 
On 18 July 2019, I attended the Police Bravery Awards to show support for officers who have displayed 
extraordinary courage. 
 
Women’s Night Safety Charter Summit 
 
On 19 July 2019, I spoke at the Women’s Night Safety Charter Summit. This was an opportunity to outline 
MOPAC and the Mayor’s strong commitment to tackling all forms of VAWG including sexual harassment 
through the refreshed VAWG strategy which centres the voices of survivors and the progress made on the 
Women’s Night Safety Charter. 
 
Business Crime and Resilience  
 
On Monday 5 August 2019, I met with Resilience First to discuss business resilience in London. We discussed 
the Public Safety Toolkit for Businesses and the London Digital Security Centre. 
 
Met Trade Unions 
 
On 6 August 2019, I met with Val Harris as part of my regular engagement with MPS personnel 
representatives. 
 
 
 

Page 65



   

 

2 
 

Collective Voice, Turning Point and Humankind 
 
On 7 August 2019, I met with representatives of drug and alcohol treatment charities in London. 
 
University of Bedfordshire 
 
On 8 August 2019, I met with Dr Carlene Firmin MBE (Principal Research Fellow, The International Centre: 
Researching Child Sexual Exploitation, Violence and Trafficking) to discuss contextual safeguarding. 
 
Home Office 
 
On 15 August 2019, I met with Kit Malthouse MP (Minister of State for Crime, Policing and the Fire Service) 
to discuss policing and officer recruitment. 
 
Borough Visit - Harrow 
 
On 15 August 2019, I visited Ignite and other partners in Wealdstone. I met with the Leader of the Council, 
Graham Henson, Harrow residents, local police representatives and charities including, Ignite, who work with 
young people aged 11-25 to help them re-engage with education, find employment or move away from anti-
social behaviour, gang involvement and exploitative relationships. 
 
Youth Justice Board 
 
On 19 August 2019, I met with Colin Allars (Chief Executive, Youth Justice Board). This meeting focused on a 
number of priority areas relating to youth justice including: London’s Safer Children and Young People’s 
Board, national YOT funding to support YJB priority areas, recent Feltham YOI inspection, and secure 
children’s homes. 
 
National Crime Agency (NCA) 
 
On 22 August 2019, I met with Lynne Owens (Director General, NCA) to discuss policing in the capital and 
shared strategic objectives. 
 
University of Loughborough  
 
On 22 August 2019, I met with Dr Holly Collison to discuss her global study exploring the cultures of violence 
varying from radicalisation, extremism, and domestic violence. 
 
 
  

Page 66



   

 

3 
 

3 MPS PERFORMANCE  
Police data are now fully updated on the London data store. In addition, more police and crime data and 
information and interactive dashboards can be found a.   An overview of key crime types is below. 

 

Aug - Jul 2018/19 2019/20 % change

Total Notifiable Offences (TNO) 831,838 883,482 6.2%
TNO Victim Based 764,275 810,091 6.0%

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour Calls 243,124 263,046 8.2%
Violence Against the Person 206,814 216,375 4.6%
Violence with Injury 77,799 77,051 -1.0%
Homicide 143 132 -7.7%
Youth Homicide 33 27 -18.2%
Serious Youth Violence 8,074 8,072 0.0%
Non Domestic Abuse VWI 53,708 53,321 -0.7%
Violence without Injury 128,872 139,192 8.0%
Domestic Abuse Notifiable 81,976 87,958 7.3%
Domestic Abuse Incidents 141,628 142,025 0.3%
Domestic Abuse VWI 24,091 23,730 -1.5%
Total Sexual Offences 20,574 20,187 -1.9%
Rape 8,260 7,983 -3.4%

Other Sexual Offences 12,314 12,204 -0.9%
Total Robbery 33,544 36,632 9.2%
Business Robbery 2,368 2,540 7.3%
Personal Robbery 31,176 34,092 9.4%
Total Burglary 79,126 81,402 2.9%
Burglary - Residential 58,959 60,150 2.0%
Burglary - Business and Community 20,167 21,252 5.4%
Total Vehicle 107,841 120,167 11.4%
Aggravated Vehicle Taking 996 944 -5.2%
Theft from MV 62,368 72,184 15.7%
Theft or Taking of MV 30,273 30,953 2.2%
Total Theft Offences 220,904 242,300 9.7%

Theft from Person 44,918 50,366 12.1%
Bicycle Theft 19,665 20,777 5.7%
Shoplifting 46,054 43,383 -5.8%

Criminal Damage Arson and Criminal Damage Offences 5,249 4,325 -17.6%

Drugs Total Drugs Offences 36,004 42,382 17.7%
Possession of Weapons 7,899 7,392 -6.4%
Knife Crime Offences 15,015 14,874 -0.9%
Knife Crime With Injury 4,692 4,039 -13.9%
Knife Crime With Injury victims under 25 (non DA) 2,058 1,681 -18.3%
Knife Crime with Injury Personal Robbery 632 595 -5.9%
Knife Possession 5,562 5,390 -3.1%
Gun Crime Offences 2,489 2,174 -12.7%
Gun Crime Lethal Discharge 402 338 -15.9%
Gun Crime Personal Robbery 626 531 -15.2%
Racist and Religious Hate Crime 16,415 17,351 5.7%
Faith Hate Crime 2,196 2,208 0.5%
Anti-Semitic 514 617 20.0%
Islamophobic 1,346 1,224 -9.1%
Sexual Orientation Hate Crime 2,268 2,527 11.4%
Transgender Hate 188 271 44.1%
Disability Hate Crime 437 429 -1.8%

Mar-18 Mar-19
p.p 

difference

Satisfaction Overall Satisfaction 70% 67% -3.0%

The police do a good job in the local area 67% 60% -7.0%

The police can be relied upon to be there when needed 74% 71% -3.0%
The police treat everyone fairly regardless of who they are 76% 76% 0.0%

The police are dealing with the things that matter to this community 70% 63% -7.0%

The police listen to the concerns of local people 72% 68% -4.0%

Feels well informed about local police activities over the last 12 months 44% 36% -8.0%

Public Attitude

Burglary

Vehicle

Theft

Weapons

Hate Crime

TNO

VAP

Domestic Abuse

Sexual Offences

Robbery

Page 67



     

 

 
4. Finance and Performance Report Q4 2018/19 

4.1       The financial reporting of MOPAC is on a quarterly basis, with any exceptional items to be noted 

on a monthly basis. The quarter 1, 2019/20 Performance Update Report is annexed to this PCC 

report. 

4.2       The report presents information with its structure aligned with the Police and Crime Plan (PCP). 

The performance sections provide quarterly and annual trends on crime in London and how the 

MPS are providing a better Police Service for London. 

4.3       The finance section starts from page 44 and provides the 2019/20 budget and the full year 

forecast position as at end June 2019. The Finance section includes a breakdown of Revenue, 

Capital and Reserves positions. 

4.4       This report has been included as Annex A and a summary of financial position has been provided 

below: 

4.5       At the end of quarter1, MOPAC Group is reporting forecast net revenue overspend of £53.6m   

            Key headlines are; 

• The MPS has is expecting to receive £10.5m of Special Grants payments from government relating 
to the Extinction Rebellion protests, President Trump’s Visit and the Grenfell Inquiry. 

• Police officer pay and overtime is forecast to overspend by £30.5m due to the pressures in 
Frontline Policing (caused by officer vacancies and non-deployable officers). 

• Police staff pay and overtime is forecast to overspend by £16.4m. The forecast overspend is 
attributed to Met Operations, Met Detention and Met Intelligence work. 

• Police Officers recruitment numbers - this is based on the MPS reaching a target of 31,000 
officers by the end of the current financial year. 

• The 2019/20 full year forecast also assumes a savings of £30.5m derived from back office 
functions, Digital policing, Met Operations budget and reduction in MPS properties from the 
MPS estates budget.   
 

4.6       Capital investment is forecast to be £355.0m against a budget of £388.0m.  

4.7 We will monitor the pay and overtime forecast closely through the year against operational 

pressures 

  

Page 68



     

 

5. CORRESPONDENCE AND MAYOR’S QUESTIONS  
 
MOPAC manages and prioritises all Mayor’s Questions and correspondence received to ensure that it is 
meeting its obligation to respond in a timely manner and to a high standard 
 
5.1       Mayor’s Questions (MQs)  

Mayor’s 
questions           

Total received Responded to within 
the GLA agreed 
timeframe 

In percentage 
terms 

May 2018 89 76 85% 

June 2018 104 81 78% 

July 2018 82 69 84% 

August 2018 No MQs 

September 2018 126 110 87% 

October 2018 110 90 82% 

November plenary 2018 25 25 100% 

November 2018 183 129 70% 

December 2018 132 62 47% 

January 2019 82 73 89% 

February 2019 108 71 66% 

March 2019  62 56 90% 

April 2019  No MQs 

May 2019 187 146 78% 

June  68 40 54% 

July 97 53 58% 

  

Page 69



     

 

 
 
5.2       Correspondence received and responded to within 20 days 

Month Correspondence 
received 

Number responded 
to within 20 working 
days 

In percentage 
terms   

May 2018 267 248 93% 

June 2018 232 204 88% 

July 2018 380 330 87% 

August 2018 204 180 88% 

September 2018 158 148 94% 

October 2018 179 158 88% 

November 2018 307 279 91% 

December 2018 173 144 83% 

January 2019 187 164 88% 

February 2019 196 165 84% 

March 2019 233 200 86% 

April 2019 193 189 98% 

May 2019 193 182 94% 

June  104 66 63% 

July 177 167 94% 

  

Page 70



     

 

 
 

6. MOPAC BUSINESS AND MEETINGS 
 
In the last month, my office and I have had a range of meetings with key stakeholders and MPS officers 
in support of the Mayor.  
 
6.1 Regular Meetings with: 

• the Mayor and his Team 

• the Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner  

• MPS Senior Officers 

• Partners including local authorities, criminal justice agencies, government departments, policing 
bodies, service providers and community groups. 
 

Meetings are covered in section 3.  

  

Page 71



     

 

6.2 Decisions 
The following formal decisions have been made since the last report: 
 

Policing 
and Crime 
Decision 

(PCD) 
Number 

Formal Decisions made 

PCD 529 
NPCC Home Office Funding – Brexit 

Preparations 2019/20 

PCD 535 
Extension to Leading for London Programme 

Contract 

PCD 553 
Counter Terrorism and Organised Crime Hub – 

Expenditure Request   

PCD 559 Mayor’s VAWG Fund 

PCD 560 
BSS Programme: Delivery of Business Support 

Services 

PCD 570 
Pilot of GPS tagging for knife crime offenders 

on licence 

PCD 571 Optimising our Buildings  

PCD 573 
Central Estate Programme - Relocation of 

Optima Healthcare 

PCD 584 
Financial Assistance request for separate 

representation at inquiry 

PCD 589 
Request for authorisation to settle ten claims 

against the Metropolitan Police Service  

PCD 590 Ocean Outdoor Counter Terrorism Messaging  

PCD 591 Video Doorbell Burglary Initiative  

PCD 592 
Forensic Services - LabNet Operational Data 

Storage 

PCD 595 Request for Financial Assistance 

PCD 596 Communications Data Analysis Tool 

PCD 598 
Proposed expansion of the Premier League 

Kicks programme 

Page 72



     

 

PCD 599 

Request for authorisation to settle a claim for 

damages against the Metropolitan Police 

Service 

PCD 601 
Early Intervention Youth Fund – Ben Kinsella 

Trust 

PCD 602 
Secure External Gateway & MSEG Contract 

Extension 

PCD 605 Belvedere Development – Additional Approval 

PCD 607 Insurance Strategy 2019 

PCD 608 Tech Bar Project Final Business Case 

PCD 610 
Information Futures Programme Outline 

Business Case 

PCD 611 
Development of Future Children and Young 

People’s Service 

PCD 612 
Vehicle Conversion, Decommissioning, and 

Disposal Contract 

PCD 613 MPS Police Now  

PCD 616 Boarding Services for Seized Dogs 

PCD 617 Youth Endowment Fund 

PCD 619 Settlement of a claim 

PCD 622 Wapping Boat Yard 

PCD 625 Settlement of a claim 

 
6.3 Future MOPAC meetings 
 

 
 

Date  MOPAC Meeting  
02/09/2019  DMG 

17/09/2019  Justice Matters 

25/09/2019  London CONTEST Board 

15/10/2019  London Crime Reduction Board 

Page 73



     

 

 
 

7. Annexes 
 

2019/20 Quarter 1 Performance Update Report (to follow) 

 

 

 
  

 
 

Page 74



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Police and Crime Committee Work 
Programme  

 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 4 September 2019 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report sets out progress on the Police and Crime Committee’s work programme. 

 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1  That the Committee notes the progress on its work programme as set out in the report. 

 

2.2 That the Committee notes the summary of the site visit to the South West Borough 

Command Unit on 7 August 2019, as set out in paragraphs 4.4 to 4.6 of the report. 

 

2.3 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chair, in consultation with the party Group 

Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree an Annual Report summarising the 

work of the Committee over the past year. 

 

 

3. Background  
 
3.1 The Committee’s work programme is intended to enable the Committee to effectively fulfil its roles 

of holding the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to account and investigating issues 

of importance to policing and crime reduction in London.  The Committee’s work involves a range of 

activities, including formal meetings with MOPAC, the Metropolitan Police Service (the MPS) and 

other stakeholders, site visits, written consultations and round table meetings. 

 

3.2 The Committee will usually meet twice a month (it will meet three times in October 2019).  One of 

the monthly meetings is usually to hold a question and answer (Q&A) session with the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime.  The Commissioner of the MPS has been invited to these meetings.  

The Committee will primarily use Q&A meetings to investigate topical issues and review MPS 

performance, including consideration of MOPAC’s approach to holding the MPS to account.  

 

3.3 The Committee’s other monthly meeting is used to consider a particular topic or aspect of policing 

and crime in greater detail.  These investigations will be conducted either by the full Committee or 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



        

working groups.  Working groups will have delegated authority to prepare reports on the 

Committee’s behalf in consultation with party Group Lead Members.  Full reports will be approved 

and published by the full Committee. 
 

 

4. Issues for Consideration  
  

4.1  The work programme has been designed to proactively examine issues of interest but also allows for 

flexibility to respond to topical issues and for the Committee to react to MOPAC’s work programme. 

Topics will be added to the timetable for Q&A meetings as they arise.  The Committee may choose 

to use its thematic meeting slot for roundtables, briefings and site visits as well as formal committee 

meetings.  

 

4.2 The Committee’s programme currently includes the meeting slots set out in the table below: 

 

Meeting Date 
 

Type of Meeting 

Wednesday, 4 September 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Thursday, 19 September 2019 at 10am 
 

Modern day slavery 

Thursday, 3 October 2019 at 10am 
 

Domestic abuse 
 

Tuesday, 15 October 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A (3 PCC meetings in October) 
 

Wednesday, 30 October 2019 at 10am Domestic Abuse 
 

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 at 10am Q&A session 
 

Wednesday, 27 November 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic 
 

Wednesday, 4 December 2019 at 10am Q&A session 
 

Thursday, 9 January 2020 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 22 January 2020 at 10am Thematic 
 

Wednesday, 5 February 2020 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 12 February 2020 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

Wednesday, 4 March 2020 at 10am  
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 18 March 2020 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

 

 

Site Visits and Briefings 

4.3 From time to time the Committee undertakes site visits to support its work.  The Committee has 

previously agreed that it will undertake site visits to the MPS’s Basic Command Units (BCUs) and the 

Metropolitan Police Marine Policing Unit.  Members have also expressed an interest in visiting the 

Page 76



        

Metropolitan Police Dog Support Unit.  These site visits will be arranged during the 2019/20 

Assembly year. 

 

4.4 As part of the scrutiny investigation into sexual offences and rape, the Committee agreed to hold an 

additional site visit to support its scrutiny investigation into sexual offences and rape.   

  
 The following Members attended the visit: 

 Tony Arbour AM 

 Susan Hall AM 

 Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 

  

4.5 The purpose of the visit was for Members to examine how the introduction of BCUs has affected the 

MPS’s response to rape and other sexual offences.  Members met representatives of the MPS to 

discuss the changes around the investigation of sexual offences and rape since the introduction of 

the BCU model.   

 

4.6 The Committee has previously undertaken scrutiny reviews of child sexual exploitation and has 

continued to take an interest in the MPS’s work to tackle child sexual exploitation (CSE) and 

Members were also able to ask questions about the BCU’s work to tackle CSE.  

 

 Police and Crime Committee Annual Report 

4.7 The Committee undertook a great deal of work in the 2018/19 Assembly year, which was 

summarised in the work programme report to the Committee’s meeting on 30 April 2019.  Last year, 

the Committee produced an Annual Report of its work in 2017/18 and it is proposed to produce a 

short report this year summarising the Committee’s work in 2018/19, which can be sent to 

stakeholders.  It is recommended that the Committee delegates authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the party Group Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree the 

report. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 

 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 
6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



        

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers:  None 

 

Contact Officer: Janette Roker, Senior Policy Adviser 

Telephone: 020 7983 6562 

E-mail: janette.roker@london.gov.uk   

 

Page 78

mailto:becky.short@london.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript of Q&A 3 July 2019

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service
	Appendix 1 - MOPAC monthly report

	6 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme



